

Psychology of Addiction

# Psychology of Addiction

ANDREA BEARMAN

HOSTED BY PALNI PRESS



Psychology of Addiction by Andrea Bearman is licensed under a <u>Creative Commons</u> <u>Attribution 4.0 International License</u>, except where otherwise noted.

# Contents

# Introduction 1 Part I. Main Body 1 Chapter 1: An Introduction to Psychoactive Drugs 3 Chapter 2: The Neuro character of Division of the Psychoactive Drugs 10

Chapter 2: The Neurochemistry and Physiology of	10
Addiction	
Chapter 3: Stimulants	18
Chapter 4: Depressants: Opiates, Opioids, and	32
Sedatives	
Chapter 5: Other Drugs and Addictions	39
Chapter 6: Depressants: Alcohol	54
Chapter 7: Hallucinogens	64
Chapter 8: Drug Use and Prevention	78
Chapter 9: Mental Health and Drugs	90
Chapter 10: Treatment	99

Appendix	107
----------	-----



# PSY 413: Psychology of Addicition

#### **Course Description:**

A study of the psychological and sociological factors relating to the problems of addiction. Special attention will be given to the effects which alcohol and other drugs have upon fetuses, children, adults, families, and communities.

#### Learning Outcomes:

- Examine the dominant beliefs and attitudes in our society with regard to chemical use, abuse, and addiction. **(LO1)**
- Define characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)
- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**
- Explain the effects of addiction on individual, family, and community. **(LO4)**
- Outline and critique current intervention and treatment modalities used in the field. **(LO5)**

# Chapter 1: An Introduction to Psychoactive Drugs

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Examine the dominant beliefs and attitudes in our society with regard to chemical use, abuse, and addiction. **(LO1)**
- Define the characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)

#### Characteristics of Psychoactive Drugs

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: <a href="https://pressbooks.palni.org/">https://pressbooks.palni.org/</a>
<a href="https://pressbooks.palni.org/">psychologyofaddiction/?p=5#h5p-1</a>

Drug use disorders are addictive disorders, defined within the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, Fifth Edition (DSM-5). This is used to diagnose all patients with psychological disorders. Individuals who are diagnosed with substance abuse disorders often exhibit both physical and psychological dependence. **Physical dependence** involves a change in normal bodily function; the user will also experience **withdrawal** as they eliminate the drugs from their system. Withdrawal symptoms, when abstaining, may have the opposite effects of the drug's action when

it is used. **Psychological dependence** is an emotional, rather than physical need, for the drug, because drug use may relieve some psychological distress. Another term to recognize is tolerance. **Tolerance** is related to physical dependence; when a person requires more and more of a drug in order to experience the desired effects; a frequent side effect of long term drug use.

**Psychoactive drugs** effect our endogenous neurotransmitter systems. Drugs can act as agonists or antagonists of a given neurotransmitter system (Baker, 2022). Agonists facilitate the activity of a neurotransmitter system, while antagonists impede neurotransmitter activity. The main categories of drugs are **depressants**, **stimulants**, and **hallucinogens**; others include opiates and hallucinogens. These will be covered below.

#### **Drug Categories**

The classification of psychoactive drugs is limited to their molecular structure. Each drug reacts in a unique way with neurotransmitters; some drugs react with more than one transmitter. Acetylcholine is the most prominent neurotransmitter effected by drug use (and abuse), but there are many others like dopamine, adenosine, serotonin, and more. Drugs change the way the brain works, disrupting how nerve cells (neurotransmitters) send, receive, and process information. Drugs have the ability to imitate the brain's natural messengers and overly reinforce positive reactions. The drugs accomplish this by crossing the blood brain barrier (Lumen). The blood brain barrier (National Cancer Institute, 2022), typically prevents toxic substances from entering our brains, but because drugs bear a similar molecular structure as our neurotransmitters, they are able to slip through the barrier unnoticed. Psychoactive drugs actually promote equilibrium in our brains, specifically the CNS. Drugs imitate so many of our natural processes to the point

that even brain scans cannot accurately identify drug cravings (Inaba, 2011).

There are instances however, when the drugs being used can completely shut down a person's system, resulting in unexpected death. For example, if a person with drug sensitivity uses cocaine, electrical signals from the brain to the heart cease to occur and the person dies. An individual's brain chemistry is unique, so it will determine how sensitive a person is to environmental stressors, drugs, and inheritable characteristics (SAMHSA, 2022).

Review the table below, selecting the hot spots for additional content. Select the icon in the upper right corner of the graphic to expand it to full screen.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=5#h5p-2

#### Beliefs and Attitudes Related to Drugs

Drug addiction is a serious psychological disorder, as shown above, it actually affects brain chemistry. There is no perfect solution to end addiction (Daniewicz, 2014). Review some of the myths of addiction, shared below. Track how many of these myths you have believed at some point. Reflect on whether you still feel that way now. These myths are from Face it Together (2022), an organization committed to helping those struggling with addiction. You can

select the double pointed arrow in the lower right corner to make the slides full screen.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=5#h5p-3

Throughout history, most if not all cultures have been attracted to substances that alter their brain chemistry (Lumen). And historically, governments financially exploit the use of psychoactive drugs to produce revenue. Even in recent studies, there is still a positive attitude regarding alcohol in emerging adults. Below are some statistics, related to the alcohol, tobacco and other drugs, provided by the <u>Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services</u> <u>Administration</u> (2020 data).

- Approximately 19.3 million people, 18 years of age or order, have had a substance abuse in the last year.
- In 2020, approximately 14.5 million people age 12 or older had an alcohol use disorder.
- In 2020, 57.3 million people age 12 or older use nicotine products.
- In 2020, 9.5 million people misused opioids in the next year.
- In 2019, 48.2 million people used marijuana in the last year.
- In 2019, 2 million people used methamphetamine in the last year, and over half have a meth use disorder.
- In 2019, 5.5 million people have used cocaine and nearly a million use crack.

Review the following TED Talks related to addiction, to better understand the attitudes and beliefs in society related to addiction.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=5#h5p-4

#### **References:**

- Baker, J. (2022). Disease prevention and healthy lifestyles. Course Hero. Retrieved June 16, 2022 from <u>https://www.coursehero.com/study-guides/</u> diseaseprevention/course-overview-introduction/
- Ball, E. (2020, October 26). Changing the stigma of mental health and addiction [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u><u>watch?v=MSBwFx7sJy0</u>
- Daniewicz, S. (2014). Attitudes toward drug use and alcohol use: Culture and emerging adulthood. Undergraduate Research Symposium. 4. <u>https://digitalcommons.morris.umn.edu/urs\_2014/</u>

<u>4?utm\_source=digitalcommons.morris.umn.edu%2Furs\_2014%2</u> <u>F4&utm\_medium=PDF&utm\_campaign=PDFCoverPages</u>

Face It Together (2022). Common myths about addiction. Face It Together. Retrieved June 16, 2022 from https://www.wefaceittogether.org/learn/common-myths

Grisel, J. (2020, February 4). Never enough: The neuroscience and

experience of addiction [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rnt1eb9vQxA

- Hari, J. (2015, July 9). Everything you think about addiction is wrong [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=PY9DcIMGxMs
- Hart, C. (2015, May 19). Let's quit abusing drug users [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=C9HMifCoSko
- Inaba, D. (2011). Uppers, downers, all arounders: Physical and mental effects of psychoactive drugs. CNS Productions.
- Khan Academy. (2015, July 15). Overview of psychoactive drugs [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=icD3l5bhhKY
- Khan Academy (2014, June 25). Psychoactive drugs: Depressants and opiates [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dOlkogaWF3M&t=4s</u>
- Khan Academy (2014, June 25). Psychoactive drugs: Hallucinogens[Video].YouTube.watch?v=GUwV0gibLx8&t=1s
- Khan Academy. (2014, June 24). Psychoactive drugs: Stimulants [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=1Smz0zwAELQ
- Lumen Learning (n.d.). Introduction to psychology. Lumen Learning. Retrieved June 15, 2022 from https://courses.lumenlearning.com/waymaker-psychology/ chapter/reading-psychoactive-drugs/
- National Cancer Institute (2022). Dictionary of cancer terms. National Cancer Institute. Retrieved June 16, 2022. https://www.cancer.gov/publications/dictionaries/cancerterms/def/blood-brain-barrier
- OpenStax and Lumen Learning (n.d.). *General psychology*. University of Central Florida. Retrieved June 15, 2022 from <u>https://pressbooks.online.ucf.edu/lumenpsychology/chapter/</u> <u>reading-psychoactive-drugs/</u>

Psychoactive Drugs (2022, June 15). Psychoactive drug. Wikipedia.

Retrieved June 15, 2022 from <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/</u> <u>Psychoactive\_drug</u>

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (2022). Alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs. SAMHSA. Retrieved June 16, 2022 from https://www.samhsa.gov/find-help/atod

# Chapter 2: The Neurochemistry and Physiology of Addiction

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Define the characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)
- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**

#### Addiction is Subjective

Each person has their own genetic and environmental risk factors that account for roughly have of an individual's risk for developing an addiction (Chakroborty, et al., 2016; Lazzara;). Even those who have a relatively low risk of genetic factors, may be susceptible with repeated exposure to high does of an addictive drug. Epigenetic genes (CDC, 2022) and their related proteins are the key components through which environmental factors can affect the genes of an individual. They are also responsible for environmental influences genes, meaning behavioral on responses to environmental stimuli. In addiction, epigenetic mechanisms play a central role in the pathophysiology of the disease. More research is needed to know the extent to which these genes play a role in addiction and the corresponding behaviors (Herman & Roberto, 2015; Lumen).

For more on the neurochemistry and addiction, please watch this video: Drug Addiction and the Brain

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/

psychologyofaddiction/?p=22#h5p-5

#### The Cycle of Addiction

Addiction is describe as the repeating cycle of three stages (shown below; select the double pointed arrow in the lower right corner to expand the graphic to full screen). Each stage is particularly associated with one of the brain regions (basal ganglia, extended amygdala, and prefrontal cortex) (APA, 2022; Fudge & Emiliano, 2003; Lipton, et al., 2019; Shackman, 2016). This three-stage model draws on decades of research and provides a useful way to recognize the cycle of addiction.

- Basal Ganglia: Involved in the Binge / Intoxication Stage
- Extended Amygdala: Involved in the Withdrawal / Negative Affect Stage
- Prefrontal Cortex: Involved in the Preoccupation / Anticipation Stage

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=22#h5p-7

#### Theories of Addiction

Several theories or models of addiction are studied and emphasized in the world of addiction. We will be covering the following in the remainder of this chapter as well as some influencing factors.

- Addictive Disease Model
- Behavioral/Environmental Model
- Academic Model
- Diathesis Stress Theory of Addiction

#### Addictive Disease Model

The disease model of addiction compares and contrasts the differences between those who have an addiction and those that do not. This theory defines addiction as a disease that changes the brain structure and functioning (Butler Center for Research, 2021). This model considers addiction a disease that can never be "cured". This is strongly related to the slides provided above the discuss the different brain structures affected by addiction (Racine, et al., 2017)

Recovery, from this perspective means that the recovering person must always refrain from use or connection to addictive substances and activities. Abstaining from these activities can be very challenging, so the theory recommends a support group, usually comprised of peers. A well-known example is Alcoholics Anonymous. It is a group of people struggling with the same addiction to alcohol. They can better understand and support each other because they too are struggling with the addiction.



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this

version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=22#h5p-8

#### Behavioral/Environmental Model

Research suggests that environmental factors my affect substance abuse behaviors. Factors that can promote abuse behaviors can include access and exposure, racial and socioeconomic status, and barriers to treatment. If you think back to Chapter 1, and the mention of psychological reasons for addiction, this paired with environmental triggers could promote addictive tendencies. There is research to support the idea that these behavioral and environmental barriers impact addiction, but ultimately more research needs to be done to discover the where, why, and how these affect a person (Surgeon General).

#### Academic Model

This model was proposed by C.K. Himmelsbach in the early 1940s. This model revolves around **allostasis**. This model suggests that pleasure, salience, and withdrawal are all linked to allostasis in addictive scenarios (De Ridder, et al., 2016; Olney, et al., 2018). For example, originally, it was thought that the amount of pleasure an addicted person experiences, decreases over time and requires increased amounts of the substance (tolerance). But more recently, research suggests that allostasis is a normal response to maintain stability when the parameters for normal functioning are outside the "normal" range and thereby resets those parameters.

#### Diathesis-Stress Model of Addiction

The diathesis-stress model combines biology and psychology to predict the predisposition of a disorder (Berridge & Robinson, 2016). This ultimately suggests that people are predisposed to be a certain way when faced with stressors, like trauma, life events, abuse, etc. It's not always just biological, it can also be psychological. The key components of this model as the the predisposition (diathesis) and the stress must be present for the disorder to occur.

#### Other Addictions

There are other addictions beyond substances like cocaine or alcohol. These can include gambling, eating, sex, pornography, computers, video games, social media, exercise, and shopping. By no means is this an exhaustive list, but it does mention a fair number that might be pertinent in your life. The "drug" of choice, be it alcohol or gambling (Gorzelanczyk, et al., 2021) is typically **goaloriented**. The goal may be affected by the stress and withdrawal experienced by the user. Typically, individuals differ in their experience of value, due to their different risk factors. The end result, however, is that the individual experiences a minimized negative state when participating in these situations, accomplishing their goal. Below are some optional studies and information related to non-drug addictions (Szerman, 2020).

 <u>Gambling Dual Disorder: A Dual Disorder and Clinical</u> <u>Neuroscience Perspective</u>

- Evaluation of Risk Behavior in Gambling Addicted and Opioid Addicted Individuals
- <u>The Bergen Shopping Addiction Scale: Reliability and Validity</u> of a Brief Screening <u>Test</u>
- <u>Video Game Addiction and Emotional States: Possible</u> <u>Confusion Between Pleasure and Happiness?</u>

#### Anonymous Organizations

Below is a short list of "Anonymous" organizations that support those with addiction; these are 12-step programs. Review them as they are relevant to you.

- <u>Alcoholics Anonymous</u>
- <u>Narcotics Anonymous</u>
- Food Addicts Anonymous
- <u>Gamblers Anonymous</u>
- Sex Addicts Anonymous
- <u>Spenders Anonymous</u>

#### **References:**

 Addiction Policy Forum (2019, May 2). The disease model of addiction

 [Video].
 YouTube.

 <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u>

 watch?v=TXuTZkcrlNE

American Psychology Association (2022). Basal ganglia. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/basal-ganglia</u>

Berridge, K. & Robinson, T. (2016). Liking, wanting, and the incentive-sensitization theory of addiction. *American* Psychology, 71(8), 670-679, doi: 10.1037/amp0000059

Butler Center for Research (2021). The brain disease model of

addiction. Hazeldon Betty Ford. https://www.hazeldenbettyford.org/education/bcr/addictionresearch/brain-disease-model-ru-316

Center for Disease Control and Prevention (2022). What is epigenetics. Genomics and Precision Health. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/genomics/disease/epigenetics.htm</u>

Chakraborty, J., Grineski, S., & Collins, T. (2016). Risky substance use environments and addiction: A new frontier for environmental justice research. Int J Environ Res Public Health, 13(6), 607, <u>doi:</u> 10.3390/jjerph13060607

De Ridder, D., Manning, P., Leong, S., Ross, S. & Vanneste, S. (2016). Allostasis in health and food addiction. *Scientific Reports*, 6, <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/srep37126</u>

Fudge, J. & Emiliano, A. (2003). The extended amygdala and the dopamine system: Another piece of the dopamine puzzle. *Journal of Neuropsychiatry and Clinical Neuroscience*, 15(3). doi: <u>10.1176/jnp.15.3.306</u>

Gorzelanczyk, E., Walecki, P., Blaszczyszyn, M., Laskowska, E., & Kawala-Sterniuk, A. (2021). Evaluation of risk behavior in gambling addicted and opioid addicted individuals. *Frontiers in Neuroscience*, https://doi.org/10.3389/fnins.2020.597524

Herman, M. & Roberto, M. (2015, March 19). The addicted brain: Understanding the neurophysiological mechanisms of addictive disorders. Frontiers in Integrative Neuroscience, 9(18), <u>doi: 10.3389/</u> fnint.2015.00018.

Lazarra, J. (n.d.) Introduction to psychology. Pressbooks. https://open.maricopa.edu/psy101/chapter/psychologicaldisorders/

Lipton, D., Gonzalez, B., & Citri, A. (2019) Dorsal striatal circuits for habits, compulsions, and addictions. Frontiers in Sytems Neuroscience, 13(28), doi: 10.3389/fnsys.2019.00028

Lumen Learning (n.d.) *Abnormal* psychology. Lumen. <u>https://courses.lumenlearning.com/wm-abnormalpsych/</u>

Olney, J., Warlow, S., Naffziger, E., & Berridge, K. (2018). Current perspectives on incentive salience and applications to clinical

disorders. Curr Opin Behav Sci, 22, 59-69, doi: <u>10.1016/</u> j.cobeha.2018.01.007

Professor Dave Explains (2019, December 27). Drug addiction and the brain [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=62FYNwd-8Jo&t=226s</u>

Racine, E., Sattler, S., & Escande, Al (2017). Free will and the brain disease model of addiction: The not so seductive allure of neuroscience and its modest impact on the attribution of free will to people with an addiction. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 8, 1850, doi: 10.3389/fpsyg.2017.01850

Shackman, A. & Fox, A. (2016). Contributions of the central extended amygdala to fear and anxiety. *Journal of Neuroscience*, 36(31), doi: <u>10.1523/JNEUROSCI.0982-16.2016</u>

Stoddart, T. (2011) List of 12 step programs. SoberNation. https://sobernation.com/list-of-12-step-programs

Surgeon General (n.d.) *Neurobiology*. Surgeon General. https://addiction.surgeongeneral.gov/sites/default/files/ chapter-2-neurobiology.pdf

 Surgeon General (n.d.) The surgeon general's report. Surgeon
 General.

 General.
 https://addiction.surgeongeneral.gov/executive-summary/report

Szerman, N., Ferre, F., Basurte-Villamor, I., Vega, P., Mesias, B., Marin-Navarrete, R., & Arango, C. (2020). Gambling dual disorder: A dual disorder and clinical neuroscience perspective. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 11, <u>doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2020.589155</u>

# Chapter 3: Stimulants

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Define the characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)
- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=24#h5p-9

#### **Overview of Stimulants**

Stimulants are drugs that typically increase overall levels of neural activity (Lumen; Florida State College). Drugs in this category include, but are not limited to: cocaine, amphetamines, bath salts, MDMA, nicotine, and caffeine. The most common routes for using stimulants are **oral consumption**, intranasal or snorting, inhalation (usually smoking), and **intravenously** with a hypodermic syringe (Rawson, 1999; Wisconsin Technical College System). This chapter will cover some of the most common stimulants used.

#### Concepts to Remember:

- Many of these drugs act as **agonists** (APA, 2022) of the user system (Vosburg, et al, 2021).
- The opposite of an agonist is an antagonist, which binds the drug and the receptor and halts natural function of the receptor (Nguyen, 2018).
- Furthermore, up-regulation and down-regulation play a role in abuse but also withdrawal (and relapse). Up-regulation is when the number of receptors that are fully functioning, without drug use, increases. When the number of receptors decreases, it is called down-regulation. Relapse is so prevalent because the body does not immediately recover from drug use, it needs time to return to its natural function and balance (OpenStax, 2020).
- The **half-life** of a drug is important to understand how long a substance remains in the body (APA, 2022). Below are some slides and further information related to half-life. Select the double-pointed arrow, in the lower right corner to enlarge the slides.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=24#h5p-17

#### Cocaine

Cocaine is derived from a South American shrub called coca (APA,

2022). The coca leaves contain a psychoactive component which is what we know as cocaine. For thousands of years, indigenous people have chewed coca leaves to also know as "khoka" in some cultures (Biondich & Joslin, 2016). It was chewed for numerous purposes including ceremonies and other social and physiological benefits. European and American cultures began limiting their usage of cocaine once its addictive nature and side effects became more widely known (Sanvisens, et al., 2021. However, many indigenous people still chew the coca leaves for the following benefits:

- 1. Gastrointestinal Treatment: Relieves stomach pain, spasms, nausea, indigestion, mouth sores, tooth aches, constipation, and diarrhea.
- 2. Environmental Stress Treatment: Relieves symptoms of hypoxia and altitude sickness and suppresses feelings of hunger and cold.
- 3. Physiological Treatment: Stabilizes blood sugar.

Move the middle bar to the right to view an image of coca leaves; move the middle bar to the left to view cocaine.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/

psychologyofaddiction/?p=24#h5p-10

# Amphetamines



"Vintage ad for amphetamines" by Tengrain is licensed under CC BY-NC 2.0.

Amphetamines are synthetic drugs that stimulate the brain and have been tricked to release norepinephrine (APA, 2022). First synthesized in 1887 in Germany, it became a common pharmacy drug in the early 1930s. Later, it was introduced during World War II to keep troops on both sides alert for over two full days. In modern treatments, it is used to help reduce or manage the symptoms of attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD), severe depression, and narcolepsy (IUPHAR/BPS, 2022; Lueithi & Liechti, 2020;

Reyes-Parada, et al., 2020). It has been used in the military for extreme cases, as well. Amphetamines produce a wide range of effects on the user, including several parts of the brain (Ferruci, 2019; Tait, et al. 2014; Tran, et al., 2021).

- Prefrontal Cortex: affects cognition and arousal
- Hypothalmus: affects food intake, thermoregulation, and arousal
- Limbic System: affects emotions, learning, memory, rewards, addiction
- Brainstem-Spinal Cord-Periphery: affects locomotion, cardiovascular and respiratory rhythm, pain perception

#### Plant-Based Stimulants

Review the following slides to learn more about plant-based stimulants (APA, 2022; Athukorala, et al., 2021; Drug Policy Alliance, 2022; Hon et al., 2021; USFS, 2022) Select the arrow in the lower right corner to expand the slides to full screen.



## Caffeine

Caffeine is a socially acceptable stimulant that is widely used to increase alertness and performance (Agoston et al., 2022; Munis, et al., 2017). It is a plant-derived, bitter substance that is found in seeds, fruits, nuts, or leaves in plants indigenous to Africa, East Asia, and South America ("Caffeine", 2022) (APA, 2022). Caffeine acts as a defense mechanism for plants, due to its bitter taste, keeping plant-eaters away and outliving the competition. The best known source of caffeine is coffee, which millions of people consume daily (often many times daily!) ("History", 2022). It is the most widely consumed (and sanctioned) psychoactive drug in the world because it is legal and unregulated nearly everywhere in the world (Franke et al. (2021). Caffeine has its own slew of positive and negative affects. Review the graphic below to learn more about the pros and cons of consuming caffeine.



Pros of coffee: Increased alertness, Reduced fatique, More clear thoughts, Reduces cold symptoms, Enhance cognitive performance, Less stigmatized, Elevates mood, & Pain reliever. Cons of Coffee: Dependence, Withdrawal. Tolerance, Self-medicati on, Impulsivity, Aggression, Diuretic, Dehydrant (AlAteeq, et al, 2021; Cusack, 2020: dePaula and Farah, 2019; Mills, et al., 2017: Rosenkranz, et al., 2019; Temple, et al., 2017)

#### Nicotine



"<u>Nicotine label</u>" by <u>Alachua County</u> is marked with <u>Public Domain Mark 1.0</u>.

Nicotine is another plantbased stimulant that is mostly derived from tobacco plants (APA, 2022). Like caffeine, it is one of the most widely used psychoactive drugs; it is the leading cause of preventable death and disease worldwide. Nicotine, found when smoking

or chewing tobacco, releases a shot of **glucose** into the system which thereby increases blood pressure, respiration, heart rate, and can lead to addiction (IUPHAR/BPS, 2022). Users are often more alert, feel more calm during stressful situations, and can also act as an appetite suppressant. However, in large doses, nicotine is toxic and can eventually result in death. Some negative effects of nicotine usages include dizziness, diarrha, vomiting, spasms, and heart attact. (Mahajan, et al., 2021; Quach, et al., 2020)

Tobacco smoke is also deadly. Exposure to tobacco smoke, even from electronic cigarettes, can increase the risk for stroke, Alzheimer's disease, schizophrenia, and other diseases. Even just the tiniest bit of smoke contained thousands of hazardous chemicals and is an addictive substance (Sharma, et al., 2022).

# Supplement Facts

Serving Size: One Addiction

# Proprietary Blend

Elation, Euphoria, Pleasure, Social Relationships Impaired, Impaired Cognition, Elevated Blood Pressure, Increased Respiration, Increased Body Temperature, Heart and Respiratory Failure, Hemorrhaging, Seizures/Convulsions, Stroke, Brain Damage

# \*\*\* Daily Value Not Established

#### Other Ingredients: Death

Proprietary Blend: Elation, Euphoria, Pleasure, Social Relationships Impaired, Impaired Cognition, Elevated Blood Pressure, Increased Respiration, Increased Body Temperature, Heart and Respiratory Failure, Hemorrhaging, Seizures/ Convulsions, Stroke, Brain Damage

## **References:**

- Agoston, C., Urban, R., Horvath, Z., van den Brink, W. & Demetrovics, Z. (2022). Self-medication of ADHD symptoms: Does caffeine have a role? Frontiers in Psychology, 13(8). doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2022.813545
  AlAteeq, D., Alotaibi, R., Saqer, R., Alharbi, N., Alotaibi, M., Musllet,
- R., & Alraqibah, R. (2021). Caffeine consumption, intoxication, and stress among female university students: a cross-sectional study. *Middle East Current Psychiatry*, 28(30).

https://mecp.springeropen.com/articles/10.1186/ s43045-021-00109-5

- American Psychological Association (2022). Agonist. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/agonist</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Amphetamines. APADictionary of Psychology.<u>https://dictionary.apa.org/</u><u>amphetamines</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). *Caffeine*. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/caffeine</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Cocaine. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/cocaine</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Ephedra. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/ephedra</u>

American Psychological Association (2022). *Half-life*. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/half-life</u>

- American Psychological Association (2022). *Khat*. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/khat</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Nicotine. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/nicotine</u>
- Athukorala, I., Tilakaratne, W., Jayasinghe, R. (2021). Areca nut chewing: Initiation, addiction, and harmful effects emphasizing the barriers and importance of cessation. *Journal of Addiction*. <u>https://doi.org/10.1155/2021/9967097</u>
- Biondich, A. & Joslin, J. (2016). Coca: The history and medical significance of an ancient Andean tradition. Emergency Medicine International. <u>https://doi.org/10.1155/2016/4048764</u>
- "Caffeine" (2022, July 9). Wikipedia. Retrieved July 14, 2022 from https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Caffeine
- Cusack, P. (2020, May 14). Addiction of Caffeine and Sugar. Open Access Journal of Addiction and Psychology, 3(5). DOI: 10.33552/ OAJAP.2020.03.000575
- dePaula, J. & Farah, A. (2019). Caffeine consumption through coffee: Content in the beverage, metabolism, health benefits and risks. Beverages, 5(2), 37. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/beverages5020037</u>
- Drug Policy Alliance (2022). What are bath salts. Drug Policy Alliance.

https://drugpolicy.org/what-are-bath-

salts?ms=5B1\_22GoogleSEM&utm\_source=GoogleSEM&utm\_me dium=cpc&utm\_campaign=SEM&cid=7011K000001SFcBQAW&gcl id=CjwKCAjwq5-WBhB7EiwAl-HEkmpYb-z-xG3FDi5s3Qfya-VBbeNkaaRhqWSJ4P8m5rPKWTXzKIeelBoCMFAQAvD\_BwE

- Ferruci, M., Limanaqi, F., Ryskalin, L., Biagioni, F., Busceti, C., & Forni, F. (2019). The effects of amphetamine and methamphetamine on the release of norepinephrine, dopamine, and acetylcholine from the brainstem reticular formation. *Frontiers in Neuroanatomy*, 13(48). https://doi.org/10.3389/fnana.2019.00048
- Florida State College at Jacksonville (n.d.) *General psychology*. Pressbooks. Retrieved July 14, 2022 from https://fscj.pressbooks.pub/psychology/chapter/substanceuse-and-abuse/

Food and Drug Administration (2018). Drugs of Abuse Home Use Test. US FDA. <u>https://www.fda.gov/medical-devices/drugs-abuse-tests/drugs-abuse-home-use-test</u>

Franke, A., Koller, G., Krause, D., Proebtstl, L., Kamp, F., Pogarell, O., Jebrini, T., Manz, K., Chrobok, A., & Soyka, M. (2021) Just "life coffee" or neuroenhancement by stimulants. Frontiers in Public Health, 9. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fpubh.2021.640154</u>

Hallare, J. & Gerriets, V. (2021). Half life. National Library of Medicine. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK554498/</u>

"History and culture of substituted amphetamines" (2022, July 9). Wikipedia. Retrieved July 14, 2022 from <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/</u><u>wiki/</u>

<u>History and culture of substituted amphetamines#cite\_not</u> <u>e-Edeleanu-2</u>

Hon, M., Kim, H., Jang, Y., Na, S., Han, B., Yoon, J., Seo, C., Lee, HJ. Lee, Y. and Kang, D. (2021). New therapeutive insight into the effect of ma huang tang on blood pressure and renal dysfunction in the L-NAME-Induced hypertension. Evidence-Based Complementary and Alternative Medicine. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1155/2021/9980429</u>

International Union of Basic and Clinical Pharmacology / British

Pharmacological Society (2022). *Amphetamine*. IUPHAR/BPS Guide to Pharmacology. Retrieved on July 14, 2022 from <u>https://www.guidetopharmacology.org/GRAC/</u> <u>LigandDisplayForward?tab=clinical&ligandId=4804</u>

- International Union of Basic and Clinical Pharmacology / British Pharmacological Society (2022). *Nicotine*. IUPHAR/BPS Guide to Pharmacology. Retrieved on July 14, 2022 from <u>https://www.guidetopharmacology.org/GRAC/</u> LigandDisplayForward?ligandId=2585
- Luethi, D. & Liechti, M. (2020). Designer drugs: Mechanism of action and adverse effects. Archives of Toxicology, 94, 1085-1133. https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s00204-020-02693-7
- Lumen Learning (n.d.) Introduction to psychology. Lumen. https://courses.lumenlearning.com/waymaker-psychology/ chapter/reading-stimulants/
- Mahajan, S., Jomis, G., Quisenberry, A. (2021). Multifactorial etiology of adolescent nicotine addiction: A review of the neurobiology of nicotine addiction and its implications for smoking cessation pharmacotherapy. Frontiers in Public Health, 9. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.3389/fpubh.2021.664748</u>
- Mills, L., Dar-Nimrod, I., & Colagiuri, B. (2017). Effect of genetic information and information about caffeine content on caffeine withdrawal symptoms. Scientific Reports 7(8407). https://www.nature.com/articles/s41598-017-08678-4
- Munis, J., Prieto, J., Gonzalez, B., Sosa, M., Cadet, J., Scorza, C., Urbano, F., Bisagno, V. (2017). Cocaine and caffeine effects on the conditioned place preference test: Concomitant changes on early genes within the mouse prefrontal cortex and nucleus accumbens. Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience. https://doi.org/10.3389/fnbeh.2017.00200

Nguyen, A. (2018). Agonists and antagonists. UTS. Retrieved July 18, 2022, from <u>https://lx.uts.edu.au/pharmacology/article/agonists-and-antagonists/</u>

OpenStax (2020). How hormones work. LibreTexts. Retrieved on July 18, 2022 from <u>https://bio.libretexts.org/Courses/</u>

Hanover\_College/

<u>Comparative Anatomy and Physiology of Animals/</u> 08%3A The Endocrine System/ 8.03%3A How Hormones Work

Pixorize (2021). Stimulants Mnemonic for MCAT [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4i9RnuCnETY

- Quach, B., Bray, M., Gaddis, N., Liu, M., Palviainen, T., Minica, C., Zellers, S., Sherva, R., Aliev, F., Nothnagel, M., Young, K., Marks, J., Young, H., Carnes, M., Guo, Y., Waldrop, A., Sey, N., Landi, M., McNeil, D., Drichel, D., ... Hancock, D. (2020). Expanding the genetic architecture of nicotine dependence and its shared genetics with multiple traits. Nature Communications, 11, 5562. https://www.nature.com/articles/s41467-020-19265-z#authorinformation
- Rawson, R. (1999). TIP 33: Treatment for stimulant use disorders: Treatment improvement protocol (TIP) 33. United States Department of Health and Human Services. https://textbooks.whatcom.edu/marketing/wp-content/ uploads/sites/23/2017/06/TIP-33.pdf
- Reyes-Parada, M., Iturriaga-Vasquez, P., Cassels, B. (2020). Amphetamine derivatives as monoamine oxidase inhibitors. Frontiers in Pharmacology, 10. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/</u> fphar.2019.01590,
- Robbins, T. (2021). Neurocognition in stimulant addiction: Commentary on Kendrick et al (2021). Psychoradiology, 1(2), 88-90. https://doi.org/10.1093/psyrad/kkab008
- Rosenkranz, M., O'Donnell, A., Verthein, U., Zurhold, H., Addison, M., Liebregts, N., Rowicka, M., Bartak, M/, Petruzelka, B., Kaner, E., Martens, M-S. (2019). Understanding pathways to stimulant use: A mixed-methods examination of the individual, social, and cultural factors shaping illicit stimulant use across Europe: Study Protocol. BMJ Open, 9. doi: 10.1136/bmjopen-2019-029476
- Sanvisens, A., Hernandez-Rubio, A., Zuluaga, P., Fuster, D., Papaseit, E., Galan, S., Farre, M., & Muga, R. (2021). Long-term outcomes of patients with cocaine use disorder: A 18-years addiction cohort

study. Frontiers in Pharmacology, 12. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/</u> fphar.2021.625610

- Sharma, S., Archie, S., Kanchanwala, V., Mimun, K., Rahman, M., Zhang, Y., & Abbruscato, T. (2022, April 26). Effects of nicotine exposure from tobacco products and electronic cigarettes on the pathogenesis of neurological diseases: Impact on CNS drug delivery. Frontiers in Drug Delivery. 2. <u>doi: 10.3389/</u> <u>fddev.2022.886099</u>
- Tait, R., McKetin, R., Kay, Lambkin, F., Carron-Arthur, B., Bennett, A., Bennett, K., Christensen, H., & Griffiths, K. (2014). A web-based intervention for users of amphetamine-type stimulants: 3-Month outcomes of a randomized controlled trial. JMIR Publications, 1(1). https://mental.jmir.org/2014/1/e1/
- Temple, J., Bernard, C., Lipshultz, S., Czachor, J., Westphal, J., Mestre, M. (2017). The safety of ingested caffeine: A comprehensive review. Frontiers in Psychology, 8(80). <u>doi:</u> <u>10.3389/fpsyt.2017.00080</u>

Thomas, S. (2022). How long do drugs stay in your system? (Drug half-life and drug tests). American Addiction Centers. https://americanaddictioncenters.org/how-long-drugssystem#\_edn1

- Tran, M., Luong, Q., Minh, G., Dunne, M., & Baker, P. (2021). Psychosocial interventions for amphetamine type stimulant use disorder: An overview of systematic reviews. Frontiers in Psychology, 10. <u>https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/</u> <u>fpsyt.2021.512076/full</u>
- United States Forest Service. (2022). Stimulants. USDA. https://www.fs.fed.us/wildflowers/ethnobotany/ Mind\_and\_Spirit/stimulants.shtml
- Vosburg, S., Robbins, R., Antshel, K., Faraone, S., & Green, J. (2021). Characterizing pathways of non-oral prescription stimulant nonmedical use among adults recruited from Reddit. Frontiers in Psychology. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyt.2020.631792</u>

Wisconsin Technical College System (n.d.). Nursing pharmacology.
Pressbooks.https://wtcs.pressbooks.pub/pharmacology/<br/>chapter/1-6-cns-stimulants/

# Chapter 4: Depressants: Opiates, Opioids, and Sedatives

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Define the characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)
- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**

#### **Overview of Depressants**

Depressants are substances that are meant to reduce a function of an organ or bodily system. Depressants typically decrease the functioning of the central nervous system in the same way that stimulants increase the functioning of the central nervous system (APA, 2022). For a review from Chapter 1, it may be beneficial to watch the short video on <u>Depressants and Opiates</u> (Khan Academy, 2014).

# Opiates and Opioids



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

32 | Chapter 4: Depressants: Opiates, Opioids, and Sedatives

<u>https://pressbooks.palni.org/</u> psychologyofaddiction/?p=26#h5p-14

Opiates, are either naturally or synthetically derived from **opium** (APA, 2022). Opioids are the naturally occurring opiates (like morphine) and synthetic versions (like heroin). Users may experience positive effects, when used clinically as pain relievers, anesthesia, cough suppressants, and antidiarrheal drugs. But, as with all drugs we are discussing, opioids are prone to abuse and dependence in the long-term; symptoms include pain relief, fatigue, euphoria, respiratory depression, and reduced function in the gastrointestinal system (APA, 2022; Bahmutsky, et al., 2020).

Review the maps below regarding opioid usage in 2009 (Butler, et al., 2011). Do you think that opioid usage has grown since this data was captured? What about the centers available for treatment? Opioid have been proven beneficial for those experiencing chronic pain among other issues, but the side effects like addiction or death come along with those benefits (Abdallah, et al., 2019; Nadeau, et al., 2021; Kakko, et al., 2019). Addiction is subjective and multi-faceted (Jones, et al., 2018), it will not be a simple fix or solution, more research and data are needed in many cases to develop better solutions for the future. After viewing the content below, it may be beneficial to review some data provided by the <u>Centers for Disease Control and Prevention</u>.

Move the bar to the right to see usage rates in 2009 and move the bar to the left to see treatment centers. Why is this important information to consider?



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this

version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=26#h5p-15

### Sedatives

Sedatives are drugs that relax the user, reduces feelings of anxiety, agitation, or excitement by depressing the nervous system. How much relaxation, from easing tension to sleeping, depends on the drug, the dosage, how it is administered, and the users general status (APA, 2022). Sedatives were synthesized first in 1832 by Justus von Liebig, though it was not declared a hynotic sedative until 1869 by Oskar Liebreich (Lopez-Munoz, et al., 2005; Guina & Merrill, 2018). Since then, the drugs have been used extensively for everything from seizures or sleep medication. While they have proven to help in many ways, long term use can be toxic and harmful (Lopez-Munoz, et al. 2005). There are two sedatives that will be covered below: Barbiturates and Benzodiazepines.

#### Barbiturates

depress Barbiturates the functioning of the cerebellum, leading to sedation and drowsiness . Barbiturates are administered orally are through an injection. Infants, pregnant and geriatric persons should avoid using these drugs. There are some fairly extreme side effects related to taking this kind of drug including but not limited to (Wisconsin Technical College):

- Suicidal thoughts and behaviors (Carlsten & Waern, 2009)
- Gastrointestinal issues
- Rashes
- Respiratory depression
- Blood disorders (potentially fatal)



"<u>Barbiturates – Winston Products for</u> <u>Education</u>" by <u>Rusty Blazenhoff</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC 2.0</u>.

- Should not be used with alcohol (can cause death)
- Addictive

#### Benzodiazepines



"<u>HP de la Demeure du Chaos</u> <u>DDC9890</u>" by <u>Abode of Chaos</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY 2.0</u>.

Benzodiazepines are generally used to combat anxiety, seizures, and promote relaxation. Benzos that are injected are generally used for sedation while those that are consumed orally are to treat anxiety. They can also be used to treat generalized anxiety, panic disorder, withdrawal of other depressants (alcohol),

and insomnia (APA, 2022; Sanabria, et al., 2021; Guina & Merrill, 2018). Much like barbiturates, children, pregnant, and elderly people should refrain from using these sort of drugs because it can cause tremors, agitation, and even hallucinations. Moreover, as is the way of opioids, respiratory depression could dramatically affect these users including coma and death (Wisconsin Technical College; Edinoff, et al., 2021). Other side effects include drowsiness, fall risk, complications for those with liver dysfunction.

Learn more about how drugs affect pregnant from this Finnish study: <u>Maternal use of sedative drugs and its effects on pregnancy outcomes</u>.

### **References:**

- Abdallah, S., Faull, O., Wanigasekera, V., Finnegan, S., Jensen, D., Pattinson, K. (2019). Opioids for breathlessness. Psychological and neural factors influencing response variability. *European Respiratory Journal*, 54. <u>DOI: 10.1183/13993003.00275-2019</u>
- 36 | Chapter 4: Depressants: Opiates, Opioids, and Sedatives

- American Psychological Association (2022). Benzodiazepine. APADictionary of Psychology.<a href="https://dictionary.apa.org/benzodiazepines">https://dictionary.apa.org/benzodiazepines</a>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Depressant. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/depressant</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Opiate. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/opiate</u>
- American Psycholgoical Association (2022). Opioid. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/opioids</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). *Opium*. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/opium</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). Sedative. APA Dictionary of Psychology <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/sedative</u>
- Bachmutsky, I., Wei, X., Kish, E., Yackle, K. (2020). Opioid depress breathing through two small brainstem sites. Neuroscience. https://doi.org/10.7554/eLife.52694
- Bjorkstedy, S., Kautianinen, H., Tuomi, U., Gissler, M., Pennanen, P., Eriksson, J., & Laine, M. (2021). Maternal use of sedative drugs and its effects on pregnancy outcomes: A Finnish birth cohort study. Scientific Reports, 11(4467), <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/ s41598-021-84151-7</u>
- Butler, S., Black, R., Cassidy, T., Dailey, T., & Budman, S. (2011). Abuse risks and routs of administration of different prescription opioid compounds and formulations. *Harm Reduction Journal*, 8(9). <u>https://harmreductionjournal.biomedcentral.com/articles/</u> <u>10.1186/1477-7517-8-29</u>
- Carleston, A. & Waern, M. (2009). Are sedatives and hypnotics associated with increased suicide risk of suicide in the elderly. BMC Geriatrics, 9(20). <u>https://bmcgeriatr.biomedcentral.com/</u> articles/10.1186/1471-2318-9-20
- Center for Disease Control and Prevention (2022). U.S. Opioid Dispensing Rate Maps. Drug Overdose. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/</u><u>drugoverdose/rxrate-maps/index.html</u>
- Edinoff, A., Nix, C., Hollier, J., Sagrera, C., Delacroix, B., Abubakar, T., Cornett, E., Kaye, A., Kaye, A. (2021). Benzodiazepines: Uses,

dangers, and clinical considerations. Psychotropic Drug Therapies and Clinical Considerations in Modern Practice, 13(4), 594-607. https://doi.org/10.3390/neurolint13040059

- Guina, J. & Merrill, B. (2018). Benzodiazepines I: Upping the care on downers: The Evidence of risks, benefits and alternatives. Journal of Clinical Medicine, 7(2), 17. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jcm7020017</u>
- Healthcare Triage (2016). The history of opioids [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4MIseokXcxY
- Jones, M., Viswanath, O., Peck, J., Kaye, A., Gill, J., & Simopoulos, T. (2018). A brief history of the opioid epidemic and strategies for pain medicine. Pain and Therapy, 7, 13-21. https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s40122-018-0097-6
- Kakko, J., Alho, H., Baldacchino, A., Molina, R., Nava, F., & Shaya, G. (2019). Cravingin opioid use disorder: From neurobiology to clinical practice. Frontiers in Psychiatry. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/ fpsyt.2019.00592</u>
- Khan Academy (2014, June 25). Psychoactive drugs: Depressants and opiates [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=dOlkogaWF3M&t=4s</u>
- Lopez-Munoz, F, Ucha-Udabe, R., & Alamo, C. (2005). The history of barbiturates a century after their clinical introduction. *Neuropsychiatric Disorders and Treatment*, 1(4), 329-343. <u>https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC2424120/</u>
- Nadeau, S., Wu, J., Lawhern, R. (2021). Opioids and chronic pain: An analytic review of the clinical evidence. Frontiers in Pain Research, 10. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fpain.2021.721357</u>
- Sanabria, E., Cuenca, R., Esteso, & Maldonado, M. (2021). Benzodiazepines: Their use either as essential medicines or as toxic substances. Environmental Epidemiology, 9(2). https://doi.org/10.3390/toxics9020025
- Wisconsin Technical College System (n.d.). Nursing pharmacology. Pressbooks. <u>https://wtcs.pressbooks.pub/pharmacology/</u> <u>chapter/1-6-cns-stimulants/</u>

# Chapter 5: Other Drugs and Addictions

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**
- Explain the effects of addiction on individual, family, and community. **(LO4)**

### Overview

This chapter will cover a few other addictive drugs, including inhalants, sports drugs, and other miscellaneous drugs; this chapter will also cover some other types of addictions like compulsive behaviors: gambling, shopping, hoarding, eating, sex, and internetbased addictions.

### Other Drugs

# Inhalants



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this

version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-16

Inhalants include a wide range of substances and side effects and are inhaled through the nose or mouth. These substances include gasoline, lacquers, spray paints, glues, aerosols, paints, and cleaning fluids. In addition to the high, intoxicating feeling, users may also experience confusion, disorientation, nausea, fatigue, and other negative side effects (Queensland Government, 2018; Verma, 2011). These substances are easy to obtain and conceal, which promotes their use and addiction. This type of substance abuse occurs worldwide, no socioeconomic class or development status left unaffected (Verma, 2011).

### Sports Drugs

Sports drugs, also called performance or appearance enhancing drugs are those are consumed to promote peak performance in sports but also increase cognitive and sexual performance (Zaami, 2021). Performance enhancing drugs are generally banned for ethical, health, and legal reasons (Queensland Government, 2021). Yet, this does not stop athletes from using them. Drugs like these are used to boost performance in that never-ending quest for greatness and winning. Commonly used drugs in this category include but are not limited to steroids, diuretics, and stimulants (Zaami, 2021). For more detailed information regarding performance enhancing drugs and how they work, review this journal article: Effects of Appearance – and Performance-Enhancing Drugs (2021).

This article lists the following side effects that users of these drugs typically experience:

- Perceived power over others
- Higher self-esteem
- Better concentration
- Depression
- Anxiety (up to and including psychosis)
- Aggression
- Brain chemistry permanently altered
- Personality changes
- Abuse
- Dependence
- Body Image Disturbance

Review the five videos below to learn how drugs affect an athlete and how it is a widespread concern.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: <a href="https://pressbooks.palni.org/">https://pressbooks.palni.org/</a>
<a href="https://pressbooks.palni.org/">psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-18</a>

### Miscellaneous Drugs

In attempts to become high or even improve health, alternative and miscellaneous drugs have been used around the world. Some of these miscellaneous drugs include: camel dung, embalming fluid, gasoline, kava, kratom, aerosol products, strychnine, and toad secretions (Inaba, 2011). Kava is highlighted below, but other drugs have been used in a similar manner.

Kava is a plant native to South Pacific areas. It has long been used, much like the other plant-based drugs discussed, for centuries in social events, medical treatments, and cultural situations. Typically the **rhizome** (Merriam, 2022; Bian, 2020) is mixed with water or coconut milk to produce its desired effects. It is a popular option to relieve anxiety and insomnia (Rowe, 2011; Biam, 2020). Generally, kava is well-tolerated, but it can be toxic in large doses. Kava users may experience skin reactions all over the body, headaches, tremors and twitches, seizures, and the typically upper-like feelings (Rowe, 2011; Bian, 2020). Learn more about Kava from this study out of New Zealand: <u>New Study on Kava Drink-Drinking Shows Impact on Brain Function</u> (2021).

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-19

### **Other Addictions**

Compulsive behaviors are fueled by the desire to avoid negative feelings. These behaviors are often habitual in nature and will even continue if there are negative outcomes (Choose Help, 2022)

# Compulsive Gambling

There are two types of gambling addiction. The first is the problem gambler, which causes their family harm, but the person still generally has control of their behavior. (Lee, 2022). The other group is actually defined by the American Psychological Association (2022) as a impulse control disorder, called pathological gamblers. This person continues to gamble despite the negative consequence they've experiences. Typically, gambling is a progressive issue with no intervention. Research suggests that this disorder is related to dysfunction in the cognitive areas of the brain, where impulse behavior is controlled (Ioannidis, 2019; Choliz, 2021). Long-term, negative outcomes associated with pathological gambling include: reduced quality of life, increase risk of divorce (where applicable) (Holdsworth, 2013), bankruptcy/debt, and even prison (Ioanndis, 2019). Some researchers have gone so far to say that gambling, while legal, is a public health concern (Choliz, 2021).

In recent years, online or internet gambling (can also be called remote) has grown significantly. It is easily accessibly, immersive, and makes payment very simple. Internet gambling can be accessed on any device with internet availability, in nearly any location (Gainsbury, 2015). Feedback and interaction is immediate and engaging in this online world, increasing its popularity, but with it the risk of account safety and security, in addition to the other risks associated with gambling.

This disorder is consider addictive because it involves the same reward circuits as substance, to the point that the user must repeat the behavior. Moreover, it is conducted in environments that reinforce the behavior and the eventual addiction (Choliz, 2021).



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this

version of the text. You can view it online here: <u>https://pressbooks.palni.org/</u> <u>psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-20</u>

# Compulsive Buying and Shopping

Compulsive buying is also known as compulsive shopping and is considered a form of an impulse control disorder. As with most addictions, the act of buying or shopping may create positive feelings for the user at first, but overtime, there will be remorse, guilt, and other repercussions like debt, impaired social relationships, and even hoarding (Lee, 2022; Muller, 2021). Typically a disorder among women, this strong buying urge becomes apparent when a person is roughly twenty years old. Those that have this disorder may have comorbidities like substance abuse, depression, anxiety, and other compulsions (Lee, 2022).

Much like gambling, online shopping or buying seems to be a growing trend and may be its own sub-type of compulsive disorder (Muller, 2021). Online shopping shares many of the same components that compulsive, in-person shopping demonstrates, with more emphasis on ease of completing the transaction.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-21

# Hoarding

Hoarding is a compulsion that involves the gathering of items (generally trivial), storing them without clear organization. Usually collected into piles, the piles lead to a cluttered home to the point of distress or impaired functioning. The individual often feels extreme anxiety if asked to remove these items from living space (APA, 2022; Choose Help, 2022). Individuals save the items to avoid negative feelings (Vilaverde, 2017). This disorder is often present with other disorders like anxiety, depression, and obsessive-compulsive disorder (Novara, 2016). Some research suggests that occupational therapy could resolve some of the challenges of hoarding. Read more from a 2019 study: Can Occupational Therapy Address the Occupational Implications of Hoarding?



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-22

# Eating Disorders

Eating disorders are often very complex situations that all have these common components: food and weight issues. Sometimes these issues are caused by other factors including genetics, environment, peer pressure, emotional health (NAMI, 2022). Furthermore, there are conditions that make an individual predisposed for developing an eating disorder. Statistically, it is more likely that someone will have an eating disorder if a young female (roughly late teens to early 20s) (Harrison, 2022; NAMI, 2022; Qian, 2022). Individuals are also more likely to have a disorder if they have family history. Dieting, stress, and specific vocations/activities can also perpetuate the pre-disposition for an eating disorder. Regardless of the condition, these disorders impact psychological, physical, and social well-being of the individual (Harrison, 2022).

- Anorexia Nervosa. This disorder is often characterized by maintaining body weight through starvation or excessive exercise. Generally, individually with this disorder have a distorted body image called **dysmorphia** (APA, 2022; Lumen; NAMI, 2022).
- **Binge Eating Disorder.** This is a disorder characterized by extreme eating habits (**binges**) and then distress because of the binge (Lumen; NAMI, 2022).
- **Bulimia Nervosa.** This disorder includes the binge eating from the previous disorder followed by **purging** (Lumen; NAMI, 2022)

Resource: National Eating Disorders Hotline Contact Information

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-23

# Sex Addiction

Sexual Addiction is defined as persistent impaired functioning, where the individual is unable to control intense, repetitive sexual impulses. It becomes the focus of the individual's life, eventually

46 | Chapter 5: Other Drugs and Addictions

resulting in neglect of other important activities like health, hobbies, and responsibilities (Antons & Brand, 2021). (Note: Paraphilic Disorders are not included in this definition (APA, 2022)). Sex addiction involves pornography, masturbation, and risky sexual acquaintances in order to fulfill needs (Efrati, 2021; Edelweiss, 2021). And again, like some of the other disorders discussed in this chapter, online sexual opportunities (cyber sex) have grown in recent years (Blinka, 2022).



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/

psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-24

# Internet-based Addictions

Finally, the last addiction to discuss in this chapter. There are different sub-types within this category including internet addiction, cyber sexual addiction, cyber-relationship addiction, information addiction, and computer games addiction and other related compulsions. Internet addiction is a pattern of excessive or obsessive online behavior that can lead to distress or impairment. The condition has grown in recent years due to the increase of social media and other forms of popular internet usage. There are some sub-types identified, but more research will need to be completed to determine true sub-types within this addictive disorder (APA, 2022). The COVID-19 pandemic seems to exacerbated the growing electronic addiction, at least in the United States with those who are urban, educated, employed, married, and 18-35

suffering the worst consequences (Khubchandani, 2021). Other research suggests that internet addiction is a growing public health concern in many Asian countries, the prevalence jumping five times more than it was prior to the pandemic (Dong, 2020). Those affected by this addiction often have other disorders like alcoholism, sleep disorders, depression, and anxiety (Moreno, 2022; Bai, 2022; Dresp-Langely & Hutt, 2022; Zhang, 2022). Read more about <u>Digital Addiction and Sleep</u>.

Strategies to combat this addiction include (Khubchandani, 2021):

- Set boundaries and adhere to them.
- Spend more time outside and/or with family
- Establish a healthy routine
- Regulate technology use
- Schedule technology breaks
- Find balance and practice mindfulness



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

<u>https://pressbooks.palni.org/</u> psychologyofaddiction/?p=28#h5p-25

# References

- Addiction Treatment Resources (2020, August 25). What are inhalants? [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TinAPZDULMI</u>
- 48 | Chapter 5: Other Drugs and Addictions

- American Psychological Association (2022). Hoarding. APA Dictionary of Psychology. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/hoarding</u>
- Antons, S. & Brand, M. (2021). Diagnostic and classification considerations related to compulsive sexual behavior disorder and problematic pornography use. *Current Addiction Reports*, 8, 452-457. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s40429-021-00383-7</u>
- Bai, W., Cai, H., Wu, S., Zhang, L., Feng, K., Li, Y., Liu, H., Du, X., Zeng, Z., Lu, C., Mi, W., Zhang, L., Ding, Y., Yang, J., Jackson, T., Cheung, T., An, F., & Xiang, Y. (2022). Internet addiction and its association with quality of life in patients with major depressive disorder: A network perspective. *Translational psychology*, 12(138). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41398-022-01893-2
- Bahji, A. (2022, May 19). Why are eating disorders so hard to treat? [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> <u>watch?v=3Bax8ijH038</u>
- Bian, T., Corral, P., Wang, Y., Botello, J., Kingston, R., Daniels, T., Salloum, R., Johnston, E., Huo, Z., Lu, J., Liu, A., & Xing, C. (2020). Kava as clinical nutrient: Promises and challenges. *Nutrients*. <u>https://www.mdpi.com/2072-6643/12/10/3044/htm</u>
- Blinka, L., Sevcikova, A., Dreier, M., Skarupova, K., & Wolfling, K. (2022). Online sex addiction: A qualitative analysis of symptoms in treatment-seeking men. Frontiers in Psychiatry. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.3389/fpsyt.2022.907549</u>
- Brand, R., Heck, P., & Ziegler, M. (2014). Illegal performance enhancing drugs and doping in sport: A picture-based brief implicit association test for measuring athletes' attitudes. Substance Abuse Treatment, Prevention, and Policy, 9(7). https://substanceabusepolicy.biomedcentral.com/articles/ 10.1186/1747-597X-9-7
- Choliz, M., Marcos, M. & Bueno, F. (2021). Ludens: A gambling addiction prevention problem based on the principles of ethical gambling. *Journal of Gambling Studies*. <u>https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s10899-021-10066-7</u>
- Clarke, C. (2019). Can occupational therapy address the occupational implications of hoarding? Occupational Therapy

International. <u>https://www.hindawi.com/journals/oti/2019/</u> 5347403/

- CNN (2013, July 23). CNN explains: Performance enhancing drugs [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K0DIY-UDwXA</u>
- Dong, H., Yang, F., Lu, X. & Hao, W. (2020). Internet addiction and related psychological factors among children and adolescents in China during the Coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) epidemic. Frontiers in Psychiatry, 11, doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2020.00751
- Dresp-Langley, B. & Hutt, A. (2022). Digital Addiction and Sleep. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 19(11) https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph19116910
- Economist, The. (2019, October 25). Doping in sport: Why it can't be stopped [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u><u>watch?v=z466itSHE58</u>
- Edelweiss Publications (2022). Sex Addiction. Edelweiss: Psychiatry Open Access. <u>https://edelweisspublications.com/keyword/22/</u> <u>1081/Sex-Addiction</u>
- Efrati, Y., Kraus, S., & Kaplan, G. (2021). Common feature in compulsive sexual behavior, substance abuse disorders, personality, treatment, and attachment a narrative review. Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 19(1). https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph19010296
- Gainsbury, S. (2015). Online gambling addiction: The relationship between internet gambling and disordered gambling. Current Addiction Reports, 2, 185-193. <u>https://link.springer.com/article/</u> 10.1007/s40429-015-0057-8
- Hall, P. (2016, March 29). We need to talk about sex addiction [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-Qf2e3XZ8Tw</u>
- Harrison, A., Francesconi, M., & Flouri, E. (2022). Types of eating disorder prodrome in adolescence: The role of decision making in childhood. Frontiers in Psychology. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/</u> <u>fpsyg.2022.743947</u>
- Holdsworth, L., Nuske, E., Tiyce, M., & Hing, N. (2013). Impacts of gambling problems on partners: partners' interpretations. Asian

Journal of Gambling Issues and Public Health, 3(11). https://ajgiph.springeropen.com/articles/10.1186/ 2195-3007-3-11

- Inaba, D. (2011). Uppers, downers, all arounders: Physical and mental effects of psychoactive drugs. CNS Productions.
- International OCD Foundation. (2018, November 30). Why people with hoarding disorder hang on to objects [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=k-CwmYHuV6U
- Ioannidis, K., Hook, R., Wickham, K., Grant, J., & Chamberlain, S. (2019). Impulsivity in gambling disorder and problem gambling: A meta-analysis, 44, 1354-1361. <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/ s41386-019-0393-9</u>
- Khubchandani, J., Sharma, S., & Price, J. (2021). COVID-19 pandemic and the burden of internet addiction in the United States.
  Psychiatry International, 2(4). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/</u> psychiatryint2040031
- learn about psychology (2021, August 8). Why a sports person takes drug [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-</u> <u>PTuhkV8UPA</u>
- Lee, J. (2022). Compulsive buying disorder. Choose Help. https://www.choosehelp.com/topics/impulse-controldisorders/compulsive-buying-disorder
- Lee, J. (2022). Compulsive hoarding. Choose Help. https://www.choosehelp.com/topics/anxiety/compulsivehoarding
- Lee, J. (2022). Gambling addiction. Choose Help. https://www.choosehelp.com/topics/gambling-addiction/ gambling-addiction-overview
- Lee, J. (2022). Understanding addiction the roles of impulsivity and compulsivity. Choose Help. <u>https://www.choosehelp.com/</u> <u>topics/addictions/understanding-addiction-the-roles-of-</u> <u>impulsivity-and-compulsivity</u>
- Lumen Learning (n.d.). Drugs. Lumen Learning. Retrieved on July 19, 2022 from <u>https://courses.lumenlearning.com/atd-herkimer-health/chapter/drugs/</u>

- Lumen Learning (n.d.). Eating Disorders. Lumen Learning. Retrieved on July 19, 2022 from <u>https://courses.lumenlearning.com/</u> waymaker-psychology/chapter/eating-disorders/
- Merriam-Webster (n.d.) Rhizome. In Merriam Webster Dictionary. Retrieved July 19, 2022 from <u>https://www.merriam-webster.com/</u><u>dictionary/rhizome</u>
- Moreno, M., Riddle, K., Jenkins, M., Singh, A., Zhao, Q., Eickhoff, J. (2022). Measuring problematic internet use, internet gaming disorder, and social media addiction in young adults: Crosssectional survey study. JMIR Publications, 8(1). doi: 10.2196/27719
- Muller,A., Laskowski, N., Wegmann, E., Steins-Loeber, S., & Brand, M. (2021). Problematic online buying-shopping: Is it time to considering the concept of an online subtype of compulsive buying-shopping disorder or a specific internet-use disorder? *Current Addiction Reports*, 8, 494-499. <u>https://link.springer.com/ article/10.1007/s40429-021-00395-3</u>
- National Alliance on Mental Illness (2022). Eating disorders. NAMI-Michigan. <u>http://namimi.org/eating-</u> disorders?gclid=EAIaIQobChMIxIju7a6C-QIV2RXUAR2aUQwIEAM <u>YAiAAEgJmNfD\_BwE</u>
- National Eating Disorders (2022). Contact the helpline. NEDA. https://www.nationaleatingdisorders.org/help-support/ contact-helpline
- Novara, C., Bottesi, G., Dorz, S., & Sanavio, E. (2016). Hoarding symptoms are not exclusive to hoarders. Frontiers in Psychology. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2016.01742</u>
- Qian, J., Wu, Y., Liu, F., Zhu, Y., Jin, H., Zhang, H., Wan, Y., Li, C., & Yu, D. (2022). An update on the prevalence of eating disorders in the general population: A systematic review and meta-analysis. Eating and Weight Disorders – Studies on Anorexia, Bulimia, and Obesity, 27, 415-428. <u>https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/</u> <u>s40519-021-01162-z</u>
- Queensland Government (2018). Drug types and their effects. Drug Information. <u>https://www.qld.gov.au/health/staying-healthy/ atods/drugs/types#inhalants</u>

- Queensland Government (2021). Drugs and sport. Support and development for clubs. <u>https://www.qld.gov.au/recreation/sports/club-support/drugs-sport</u>
- Rowe, A., Zhang, L., & Ramzan, I. (2011). Toxicokinetics of kava. Advances in Pharmacological and Pharmaceutical Sciences. https://www.hindawi.com/journals/aps/2011/326724/
- Schuett, L. (2019). Think twice before buying [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=HGQg\_nVPEq8
- SciShow. (2013, December 8). *Performance enhancing drugs* [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qfxoqje1X7o</u>
- Top 10 Clipz (2017, June 12). Top 10 athletes with drug addiction [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sgce-r49kTQ</u>
- University of Waikato (2021, September 21). New study on kava drink-driving shows impact on brain function. <u>https://www.waikato.ac.nz/news-opinion/media/2021/new-</u> <u>study-on-kava-drink-driving-shows-impact-on-brain-function</u>
- Verma, R., Balhara, Y., & Deshpande, S. (2011). Workplace inhalant abuse in adult female: Brief report. Case Reports in Psychiatry. <u>https://www.hindawi.com/journals/crips/2011/905380/</u>
- Vilaverde, D., Goncalves, J., & Morgado, P. (2017). Hoarding disorder: A case report. Frontiers in Psychology. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyt.2017.00112</u>
- Your Body On (2021, November 3). No internet for one week [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=oTX4rrt\_hqo</u>
- Zaami, S., Minutillo, A., Sirignano, A., Marinelli, E. (2021). Effects of appearance- and performance-enhancing drugs on personality traits. Frontiers in Psychology. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/</u> fpsyt.2021.730167
- Zhang, C., Hao, J., Liu, Y., Cui, J., & Yu, H. (2022). Associations between online learning, smartphone addiction problems, and psychological symptoms in Chinese college students after the COVID-19 pandemic. Frontiers in Public Health, 10. <u>doi: 10.3389/</u> <u>fpubh.2022.881074</u>

# Chapter 6: Depressants: Alcohol

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Examine the dominant beliefs and attitudes in our society with regard to chemical use. **(LO1)**
- Define the characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)
- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=30#h5p-26

#### Overview

This chapter will discuss alcohol and its relationship with addiction, other health issues, and epidemiology. Alcohol is a substance that has been in use (in some form or fashion) for many thousands of years across the world. Fermented beverages resembling alcohol, we consume by early Egyptians, Chinese, and India as far back as 7000 BC (Drug Free World, 2022). Many cultures had gods and goddesses that were worshiped through drink, usually to excess. Early civilizations and cultures in South and Central America also

54 | Chapter 6: Depressants: Alcohol

had their own varieties of fermented beverages, often made from sugary produce like corn, grape, or apples (Drug Free World, 2022; Setiz & Neuman, 2021). European and North American populations have more recent, even challenging history with alcohol, including periods of temperance and prohibition (Drug Free World, 2022). It seems that no matter where an individual is located, alcohol is a prevalent part of the culture. To learn more about a the history of alcohol from this short video by Rod Phillips (2020).



https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=30#h5p-28

# Alcohol

Alcohol is has one major psychoactive component and that is ethyl alcohol (or ethanol). It is created through the fermentation of glucose found in alcoholic beverages like beer, wine, and liquors. This substance, like other drugs, affects the central nervous system and its electronic functioning (Jurado-Barba, 2020). It generally affects mood and cognitive function, but other times with excessive use, it will also impair self-control, speech, bodily control and function (APA, 2022; Inaba, 2011; NIAAA, 2022; Wang, 2020). Additionally, despite the negative affects experienced by the user, the individual will continue to consume because of this loss of selfcontrol (Stock, 2017). The amount of pure alcohol varies from one type of beverage to another. Review this resource provided by the Australian Government (2022) that covers a <u>Standard Drinks Guide;</u> Drink Calculators may also be interesting resources to explore:

- Drink Calculator
- Drink Calculator Quiz Game

# Alcohol Processing

Alcohol is processed by two main enzymes. These enzymes break down the alcohol molecule into manageable pieces, that are easier for the body to eliminate (NIAAA, 2022). The rate at which alcohol is broken down depends greatly on the weight, gender, age, and additional individual characteristics. As with other substances, once the psychoactive component of alcohol crosses the blood-brain barrier, the effects are felt by the user. Women typically feel the affects of alcohol much quicker than males (Inaba, 2011). Review the usage levels below, expand with the double pointed arrow in the lower right corner for full screen.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=30#h5p-27

# **Alcohol Addiction**



"<u>The-Simpsons—Homer—To-Alcohol—C</u> <u>10314164</u>" by <u>antoinedemorris</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY 2.0</u>.

Alcoholism also known as alcohol dependence. is а chronic disease that has severe. significant behavioral. psychological, and pscyhosocial consequences. Addiction of this substance include can cravings, tolerance. dependence and withdrawal when it is no longer consumed 2022; Inaba, (APA, 2011). Research has suggested that there are many genetic predictors for alcohol abuse other addictions. and in addition environmental to factors. Pre-disposition for alcohol usage creates a vicious, cycle repetitive of use.

withdrawal, and craving (Heilig, 2021) as covered in previous chapters. An estimated 15 million people ages 12 and up have not only used alcohol but abuse it, just in the United States (SAMHSA, 2022). The National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism reports the following statistics for alcohol use in United States (2022):

- Prevalence of Drinking:
  - 85.6% of people aged 18 years and older report that they have tried alcohol.
  - 69.5% of these people reported drinking in the last year.
  - 54.9% of these people reported that they drank in the last month.

- Binge Drinking and Heavy Alcohol Consumption:
  - 25.8% of people reported that they engaged in binge drinking in the past month.
  - 6.3% of people reported that they engaged in heavy alcohol usages in the past month
- Other Extreme situations
  - Aggression and violence are are often triggered when under the influence of alcohol.
  - Millions of drivers each year are arrested for using alcohol while driving, killing others while intoxicated, and being distracted in other ways while also intoxicated.
  - Other fatal situations like suicide, boating and industrial accidents are prevalent among alcohol users as well.
     Billions of dollars are spent each year due to all of these consequences of alcohol usage (Grace, 2021; Heilig, 2019; Grace, 2021; Stock 2017).

# More Problems

# Influences

Alcohol is usually paired with other substances or issues, rarely working alone. It is a complex situation and the individual needs proper attention and care for all of the disorders. Potential other influences include, but are not limited to:

- The majority of alcohol users report marijuana and cigarettes used with alcohol.
- It is also popular to combine alcohol with methamphetamine or cocaine to create a "speedball" to combat depression symptoms (Inaba, 2011).

- Alcohol is also prevalent in individuals with mental disorders like depression and anxiety. Alcoholism can be hidden by the mental disorders (NIAAA, 2022).
- Social influences also cause many alcohol-related experiences (Bodnar, 2021), both positive and negative.

### Pregnancy

Women who consume alcohol while pregnant are more likely to experience miscarriage, stillbirth, premature birth, **SIDS**, and **FASD**. For more information regarding alcohol and pregnancy, review the information regarding <u>Fetal Alcohol Exposure</u> provided by NIAA (2022).

# Epidemiology

Every country has different rules, regulations, or cultural expectations regarding the use (and abuse) of alcohol. Each subgroup, like age, sex, and vocation, also has its own rules and expectations.

### Cultural and Ethnic Implications

Select each of the hot spots on the map below to learn a bit more about the cultural and ethical differences between cultures around the world. An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=30#h5p-29

Gender Implications

Earlier in this chapter it is mentioned that women are affected by alcohol consumption more quickly than men. In addition to this, women are more likely to die of alcoholism than men (Inaba, 2011). Learn more by watching this video.



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=30#h5p-30

# **References:**

Addicted to Happy (2021, November 16). Where does your drinking fall on the alcohol use spectrum? [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2OKXmaLoFdE

60 | Chapter 6: Depressants: Alcohol

American Psychological Association (2022). Alcohol use disorder. APA Dictionary. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/alcohol-use-disorder</u>

American Psychological Association (2022).*Ethanol.* APA Dictionary. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/ethanol</u>

Australian Government (2020). Standard drinks guide. About Alcohol. <u>https://www.health.gov.au/health-topics/alcohol/about-alcohol/standard-drinks-guide</u>

Bodnar, V., Nagy, K, Cziboly, A., & Bardos, G. (2021). Alcohol and placebo: The role of expectations and social influence. *International Journal of Mental Health and Addiction*, 19, https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s11469-020-00321-0

Dandelion Medical Animation (2021, December 25). Digestion of alcohol is not like other food [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9Oslu11jnmM

Foundation for a Drug-Free World (2022). Alcohol: A short history. A Foundation for a Drug-Free World. https://www.drugfreeworld.org/drugfacts/alcohol/a-shorthistory.html

Grace, S., Rossetti, M.G., Allen, N. et al. (2021). Sex differences in the neuroanatomy of alcohol dependence: hippocampus and amygdala subregions in a sample of 966 people from the ENIGMA Addiction Working Group. *Translational Psychiatry* 11, 156 . https://doi.org/10.1038/s41398-021-01204-1

Grossman, E., Benjamin-Neelon, S., & Sonnenschein, S. (2020). Alcohol consumption during the COVID-19 pandemic: A crosssectional survey of US adults. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 17(24). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/</u> <u>ijerph17249189</u>

Harker, N., Londani, M., Morojele, N., Williams, P., Parry, C. (2020). Characteristics and predictors of heavy episodic drinking (HED) among people aged 16-25: The international alcohol control study (IAC), Tshwane, South Africa. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 17(10). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/</u> ijerph17103537

Heilig, M., MacKillop, J., Martinez, D., Rehm, J., Leggio, L, &

Vandershuren, L. (2021). Addiction as a brain disease revised: Why it still matters, and the need for consilience. Neuropsychopharmacology, 46, https://www.nature.com/articles/ s41386-020-00950-y

Heilig, M., Augier, E., Pfarr, S. et al. (2019). Developing neuroscience-based treatments for alcohol addiction: A matter of choice?. *Translational Psychiatry*, 9, 255 (2019). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41398-019-0591-6

Hernandez-Vasquez, A., Chacon-Torrico, H., Vargas-Fernandez, R., Grenda, L., Bendezu-Quispe, G. (2022). Gender differences in the factors associated with alcohol binge drinking: A populationbased analysis in a Latin American country. *International Journal* of Environmental Research and Public Health, 19(9). https://www.mdpi.com/1660-4601/19/9/4931/htm

Inaba, D. (2011). Uppers, downers, all arounders: Physical and mental effects of psychoactive drugs. CNS Productions.

Jurado-Barba R, Sion A, Martínez-Maldonado A, Domínguez-Centeno I, Prieto-Montalvo J, Navarrete F, García-Gutierrez MS, Manzanares J and Rubio G (2020). Neuropsychophysiological Measures of Alcohol Dependence: Can We Use EEG in the Clinical Assessment? Front. Psychiatry 11:676. doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2020.00676

Miller, E., Olver, I., Wilson, C., Lunnay, B., Meyer, S., Foley, K., Thomas, J., Toson, B., & Ward, P. (2021). COVID-19, alcohol consumption and stockpiling practices in midlife women: Repeat surveys during lockdown in Australia and the United Kingdom. *Frontiers in Public Health.* <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/</u> fpubh.2021.642950

National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (2022). Alcohol topics A to Z. NIAAA. <u>https://www.niaaa.nih.gov/alcohols-effects-health/alcohol-topics-a-to-z</u>

Philips, R. (2020, January 2020). A brief history of alcohol [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=y5XEwTDlriE</u>

Rossow, I., Bartak, M., Bloomfield, K., Braddick, F., Bye, E., Kilian, C., Lopez-Pelayo, H., Makela, P., Moan, I., Moskalewicz, J., Petruszelka, B., Rogalewics, V., & Manthey, J. (2021). Changes in

alcohol consumption during the COVID-19 pandemic are dependent on initial consumption level: Findings from eight European countries. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 18(19). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph181910547</u>

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (2022). Alcohol, tobacco, and other drugs. US Department of Health and Human Services. <u>https://www.samhsa.gov/find-help/atod</u>

Seitz, H. & Neuman, M. (2021). The history of alcoholic liver disease: From an unrecognized disease to one of the most frequent diseases in hepatology. *Journal of Clinical Medicine*, 10(4). https://www.mdpi.com/2077-0383/10/4/858/htm

Stock, A. (2017). Braking up the wrong tree: Why and how we may need to revise alcohol addiction therapy. *Frontiers in Psychology*. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2017.00884

Theron, M., Swart, R., Londani, M., Parry, C., Williams, P., & Harker, N. (2021). Did COVID-19-related alcohol sales restrictions reduce alcohol consumption? Findings from a national online survey in South Africa. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 19(4). https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph19042422

Wang, S., Chen, Y., Chen, S., Lee, C., & Cheng, C. (2020). Alcohol addiction, gut microbota, and alcoholism treatment: A review. *International Journal of Molecular Sciences*, 21(17). https://www.mdpi.com/1422-0067/21/17/6413

# Chapter 7: Hallucinogens

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Examine the dominant beliefs and attitudes in our society with regard to chemical use. (LO1)
- Define the characteristics of the major classes of drugs. (LO2)
- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. (LO3)



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=32#h5p-31

#### Overview

Hallucinogens are a tricky batch of drugs that can act like stimulants or act as depressants. This group of drugs may produce a sensory effect leading to additional alternations in perception, cognition, and mood (APA, 2022). These drugs can also be called psychedelic drugs and include: LSD, psilocybin mushrooms, peyote, MDMA, ketamine, PCP, DMT, and marijuana. These drugs are generally sorted into two classic categories: hallucinogens (like LSD) and dissociative drugs (like PCP) (NIDA, 2015). While there is a



"<u>Hallucinogenic Plants A Golden</u> <u>Guide</u>" by <u>Howard G Charing</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC 2.0</u>.

negative stigma associated with this group of drugs, there is burgeoning research that suggests there are medical and therapeutic uses for these drugs. Generally, there is a slim chance of: toxicity, addiction, dependence, and neurological affects during or after use (Lowe, 2022; Matzopoulos et al., 2022).

# LSD (Lysergic acid diethylamide)



"<u>File:Claviceps purpurea 47424140.jpg</u>" by <u>Kasper Malmberg</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY 4.0</u>.

LSD is very strong drug in this category that mimics neurotransmitters exerting its psychoactive effects on the user. It is unique because it interacts with both serotonin and dopamine receptors (Lowe, 2022). LSD has many aliases including but not limited to: acid, sugar cubs, trips, tabs, or

windowpanes. Derived from a fungus (show at left), it is nearly undetectable and water soluble. The most common way to take this drug, besides orally, is for LSD-soaked paper to be cut into small, but potent, circles (NIDA, 2015).

Early in its history, LSD was used to treat alcoholism and neurosis. But more recent studies have seen improvements in users who have the following diseases or situations: Alzheimer's disease, schizophrenia, multiple sclerosis, criminal behavior, autism, frigidity, and many others (Lowe, 2022; Oehen & Gaser, 2022).

Short-term sides effects of LSD are (NIDA, 2015):

- Increased blood pressure and temperature
- Dizziness and fatigue
- Appetite suppression
- · Feelings of numbness, weakness, and tremors
- · Increase impulsivity and moodiness
## Psilocybin Mushroom

The **psilocybin** mushrooms (shown at right) has play an integral role in cultural traditions throughout Central South America for and centuries (Matzopoulos et al., 2022; Rootman et al., 2022). The effects users experienced were considered magical up to deep religious and spiritual experiences (Lowe, 2022; NIDA, 2015; Arce & Winkelman et al., 2021). Because of its vital cultural role, it is one of the most studied psychedelic drugs. Currently, there are



"<u>Psilocybe Mexicana</u>" by <u>Quasimondo</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC 2.0</u>.

promising therapeutic uses for psilocybin mushrooms, like treating painful conditions, heart conditions, or mood and anxiety disorders, especially in the era of the COVID-19 pandemic (Lowe, 2022; Matzopoulos et al., 2022; Nkadimeng et al., 2020). The mushrooms can be consumed, orally, in a variety of ways ranging from raw to brewed with tea (NIDA, 2015); studies indicate that small doses are effective in treating symptoms without impairing regular functioning of the individual (Rootman et. al, 2022).

Short-term side effects of psilocybin mushrooms are (NIDA, 2015):

- Sense of ease or relaxation
- Anxiety
- Introspection
- Poisoning due to misidentification of mushrooms

## Peyote



"Xochipilli, Aztec 'Prince of Flowers' – Hallucinogenic Plants A Golden Guide" by Howard G Charing is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC 2.0</u>.

Peyote is a small cactus with main ingredient its being mescaline. It has been used in Central and North America during cultural and religious experiences. The intoxicating liquid, produced when processing the cactus, that it is usually consumed via tea to tamp down the excessively bitter flavor (NIDA, 2015; APA, 2022; Hinojosa, 2018). The future of peyote is uncertain as it is not being used in a sustainable way and therefore can not regrow as quickly as it is consumed (APA, 2022; Ermakova et al., 2020). Learn more about peyote harvest and some of the practices from this

article: <u>Peyote Veneration in Challenging Times: Issues of Land and</u> <u>Access in South Texas</u> (2018) and watch the video below called Drinking Psychedelic Peyote Juice in Mexico (2021).

Short-term side effects of peyote are (NIDA, 2015):

- Increased heart rate and temperature
- Ataxia
- Significant sweating



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=32#h5p-32

# MDMA (Methylenedioxymethamphetamine)

This drug has an amphetamine-style experience with added hallucinations. It is typically sold as ecstasy. Individuals will experience the high very quickly and for a long time, even up to days (APA, 2022). Users of this drug may feel euphoric arousal with spiritual experiences. Research suggests that there are some long-term side effects like addiction, memory dysfunction, lack of control, and when used in high doses, it can be deadly (APA, 2022; Pantoni et al., 2022). And, other research has provided evidence that it can be beneficial in low-doses for safely treating intense disorders like PTSD (Mitchell et al., 2021; Arluk et al., 2022) and other anxiety-related experiences and disorders (Makunts et al., 2022; Oehen & Gaser, 2022)

Some side effects that can be experienced are (Oehen & Gaser, 2022)

- Pain
- Cramps
- Dissociative symptoms
- Sensory hallucinations

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

<u>https://pressbooks.palni.org/</u> <u>psychologyofaddiction/?p=32#h5p-33</u>

# Ketamine

•



"<u>ketamine</u>" by <u>juliankopald</u> is marked with <u>Public Domain Mark 1.0</u>.

Ketamine, a cousin to PCP, often results in the user being disoriented and hallucinating. Typically, this drug is ingested in pill or powder form (APA, 2022). At one time, ketamine was used in veterinarian offices (NIDA, 2015), but eventually came to treat a variety of conditions painful and addiction (Carboni, 2021: Marcus & Bruchas. 2021: Pribish. 2020). but more

recently, it has been used to treat unique cases of bipolardepression, where other treatments have proven ineffective (APA, 2022; Rawat et al., 2022; Yavi et al., 2022; Pribish, 2020). Because of its lack of odor and color, it has been used to spike drinks in order to commit sexual assault (NIDA, 2015). Ketamine is poorly understood or lacks the research to support potential benefits (Carboni, 2021; Marcus & Bruchas, 2021).

Side effects can include (Carboni, 2021):

Hallucinations

- Nightmares or intense dreams
- Delusions
- Anesthesia (Pribish, 2020)

### PCP

PCP was originally developed for surgical uses, but later it was realized that it produces hallucinogenic responses (APA, 2022) and is now sought out for recreational uses (Ryu et al., 2020). This drug can consumed in a number of ways, though when it is smoked it is usually combined with marijuana or tobacco (NIDA, 2015).

Symptoms of use, can include (APA, 2022):

- Schizophrenia (both positive and negative symptoms)
- Agitation
- Delirium
- Disorientation
- Hallucinations

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=32#h5p-34

# DMT and Ayahuasca



"<u>Preparing Ayahuasca –</u> <u>Hallucinogenic Plants A Golden-Guide</u> <u>102a</u>" by <u>Howard G Charing</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC 2.0</u>.

DMT is а powerful psychoactive ingredient found in a plant species native to the Amazon. Synthetic versions of this drug are usually a white powder that is smoked. Ayahuasca is made from similar Amazonian plants as well, but is usually consumed in the form of tea in South America (NIDA, 2015; APA, 2022). These drugs are characterized by short

periods of hallucinations (Timmermann et al., 2018; Alamia, 2020) and while it is generally safe to use, it cannot be easily broken down in the body and may negatively react with other drugs (Lowe, 2022). Ayahuasca is typically reserved for spiritual and cultural ceremonies but can also act as an aphrodisiac and in the diagnosis of other disorders (Lowe, 2022; APA, 2022). It is a trending component of South American tourism that began in the Amazon, but is spreading to other South American countries as well and beyond into North America and Europe (Lowe, 2022).

Side effects can include (APA, 2022):

- Nausea
- Vomiting
- Tinnitus
- Euphoria

### Marijuana

Also known as cannabis. these species of plants make up a very popular recreational drug. In fact, globally is it the popular controlled most substance (Graves et al., 2020; 2020) The Latif & Garg, psychoactive component known as THC, is contained in the flowers of the plant (APA, 2022). This drug is typically smoked and the user feels the high for roughly three hours. Learn more about cannabis, it effects the how brain. medicine, communities, and businesses by watching the playlist below.

Side effects can include (APA, 2022):

"<u>Cannabis Sativa – Hallucinogenic</u> <u>Plants A Golden Guide</u>" by <u>Howard G</u> <u>Charing</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC</u> <u>2.0</u>.

- Euphoria
- Hallucinations
- · Lack of memory or focus
- Food cravings
- Anxiety
- Tolerance
- Withdrawal

Research also suggests that there could be severe effects on the cardiovascular system by using this drug, check out this study for more information: <u>The Impact of Marijuana on the Cardiovascular</u>

<u>System: A Review of the Most Common Cardiovascular Events</u> <u>Associated with Marijuana Use</u> (Latif & Garg, 2020).

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=32#h5p-35

### References

- Alamia, A., Timmermann, C., Nutt, D., VanRullen, R., Carhart-Harris,
  R. (2020) DMT alters cortical travelling waves. *eLife* 9:e59784 <u>https://doi.org/10.7554/eLife.59784</u>
- American Psychological Association (2022). *Cannabis*. APA. https://dictionary.apa.org/cannabis
- American Psychological Association (2022). Hallucinogen. APA. https://dictionary.apa.org/hallucinogen
- American Psychological Associations (2022). LSD. APA. https://dictionary.apa.org/lsd
- American Psychological Association (2022). Peyote. APA. https://dictionary.apa.org/peyote
- Arluk, S., Matar, M.A., Carmi, L. et al.(2022) MDMA treatment paired with a trauma-cue promotes adaptive stress responses in a translational model of PTSD in rats. *Transl Psychiatry* 12, 181 . <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41398-022-01952-8</u>

- Bahji, A. (2019, December 2). Is marijuana bad for your brain? [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KyVSuI6JyOs</u>
- Carboni E, Carta AR, Carboni E & Novelli A (2021) .Repurposing Ketamine in Depression and Related Disorders: Can This Enigmatic Drug Achieve Success? Frontiers in Neuroscience, 15:657714. doi: 10.3389/fnins.2021.657714
- Casarett, D. (2017, May 17). A doctor's case for medical marijuana [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=KyVSuI6JyOs
- Cort, B. (2018, September 25). What commercialization is doing to cannabis [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KyVSuI6JyOs</u>
- dakota of earth (2021, January 2). Drinking psychedelic peyote juice in Mexico [Video']. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=htwxsM7ZbEA
- Ermakova, A., Whiting, C., Trout, K., Clubbe, C., Fowler, N., Terry, M. (2020). Ecology and conservation of peyote in Texas, USA: Comparative survey of Lophophora williamsii populations in Tamaulipan Thornscrub and Chihuahuan Desert. Journal of the Botanical Research Institute of Texas. doi: https://doi.org/10.1101/2020.04.03.023515
- Graves, B., Johnson, T., Nishida, R., Dias, R., Savareear, B., Harynuk, J., Kazemimanesh, M., Olfert., J. & Boies, A. (2020). Comprehensive characterization of mainstream marijuana and tobacco smoke. Scientific Reports 10, <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/ s41598-020-63120-6#citeas</u>
- Hinojosa, S. (2018). Peyote veneration in challenging times: Issues of land and access in South Texas. Arcadia, 19, https://www.environmentandsociety.org/arcadia/peyoteveneration-challenging-times-issues-land-and-access-southtexas
- Latif, Z & Garg, N. (2020) The impact of marijuana on the cardiovascular system: A review of the most common cardiovascular events associate with marijuana use. *Journal of Clinical Medicine*, 9(6). https://doi.org/10.3390/jcm9061925

- Lowe, H., Toyang, N., Steele, B., Grant, J., Ali, A., Gordon, L., & Ngwa, W. (2022). Psychedelics: Alternative and potential therapeutic options for treating mood and anxiety disorders. *Molecules*, 27(8). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules27082520</u>
- Makunts T, Jerome L, Abagyan R., & de Boer A (2022). Reported cases of serotonin syndrome in MDMA users in FAERS database. *Frontiers in Psychiatry* 12:824288. doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2021.824288
- Marcus, D. & Bruchas, B. (2021) Antidepressants: Where ketamine and dopamine collide *eLife* 10:e70148 <u>https://doi.org/10.7554/</u> <u>eLife.70148</u>
- Matzopoulos R, Morlock R, Morlock A, Lerer B and Lerer L (2022). Psychedelic mushrooms in the USA: Knowledge, patterns of use, and association with health outcomes. Frontiers in Psychiatry 12:780696. doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2021.780696
- National Institute on Drug Abuse (2015). Hallucinogens and dissociative drugs. NIDA. Retrieved July 21, 2022 from<u>https://textbooks.whatcom.edu/marketing/wp-content/uploads/sites/25/2017/06/Hallucinogens-Dissociative-Drugs-NIDA.pdf</u>
- New Zealand Drug Administration (2022, February 17). Did you know: MDMA [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> <u>watch?v=AeK1biRUoSE</u>
- Oehen P and Gasser P (2022) Using a MDMA- and LSD-group therapy model in clinical practice in Switzerland and highlighting the treatment of trauma-related disorders. *Frontiers in Psychiatry* 13:863552. <u>doi: 10.3389/fpsyt.2022.863552</u>
- Pantoni, M.M., Kim, J.L., Van Alstyne, K.R. et al. (2022). MDMA and memory, addiction, and depression: dose-effect analysis. Psychopharmacology 239, 935–949. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/ s00213-022-06086-9</u>
- Pribish, A., Wood, N., & Kalava, A. (2020). A review of nonanesthetic uses of ketamine. Anesthesiology Research and Practice. https://doi.org/10.1155/2020/5798285
- Rawat, R., Tunc-Ozcan, E., McGuire, T.L. et al. (2022). Ketamine activates adult-born immature granule neurons to rapidly

alleviate depression-like behaviors in mice. Nature Communications, **13**, 2650. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/</u> <u>s41467-022-30386-5</u>

- Rodríguez Arce JM & Winkelman MJ (2021) Psychedelics, Sociality, and Human Evolution. Frontiers in Psychol. 12:729425. <u>doi:</u> <u>10.3389/fpsyg.2021.729425</u>
- Rootman, J.M., Kiraga, M., Kryskow, P. et al. (2022). Psilocybin microdosers demonstrate greater observed improvements in mood and mental health at one month relative to nonmicrodosing controls. Scientific Reports 12, 11091 . https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-022-14512-3
- Ryu, I.S.; Kim, O.-H.; Lee, Y.E.; Kim, J.S.; Li, Z.-H.; Kim, T.W.; Lim, R.-N.; Lee, Y.J.; Cheong, J.H.; Kim, H.J.; Lee, Y.S.; Steffensen, S.C.; Lee, B.H.; Seo, J.-W.; Jang, E.Y. (2020). The Abuse Potential of Novel Synthetic Phencyclidine Derivative 1-(1-(4-Fluorophenyl)Cyclohexyl)Piperidine (4'-F-PCP) in Rodents. International Journal of Molecular Science , 21, 4631. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijms21134631
- Timmermann C, Roseman L, Williams L, Erritzoe D, Martial C, Cassol H, Laureys S, Nutt D and Carhart-Harris R (2018) DMT Models the Near-Death Experience. Frontiers in Psychology. 9:1424. doi: 10.3389/fpsyg.2018.01424
- Tribble, K. (2021, July 21). How marijuana reform could repair, reclaim, and restore communities [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KyVSuI6JyOs
- Yavi, M., Lee, H., Henter, I.D. et al. (2022). Ketamine treatment for depression: a review. Discover Mental Health 2, 9. <u>https://doi.org/ 10.1007/s44192-022-00012-3</u>

# Chapter 8: Drug Use and Prevention

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Examine the dominant beliefs and attitudes in our society with regard to chemical use. **(LO1)**
- Explain the effects of addiction on individual, family, and community. **(LO4)**
- Outline and critique current intervention and treatment modalities used in the field. **(LO5)**



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=34#h5p-36

### History of Prevention

Drugs have been in use for centuries, as this book shows. And as long as they have been around, there have always be users that abused them. As groups identified the potential negative consequences with extreme and prolonged usage, there were measures put in place to try and mitigate addiction. In the United States alone, there have been periods of prohibition, attitudes that addiction is a moral failing or a criminal offense, and only in recent years has it been considered a disease (American Addiction Centers, 2022).

Drugs like morphine and cocaine have been used for their healing potential since the 1800s. But as the years went by moving into the 1900s, there was more emphasis on stamping out illicit drug use while even more exotic drugs became available, like marijuana and hallucinogens (American Addiction Centers, 2022). The first asylum for those afflicted with alcoholism opened in 1864. As the public slowly began to accept alcoholism as a serious problem, more places like this opened. Now, there are thousands of drug rehabilitation programs that have a variety of treatment options. Care is usually best when it is tailored to the patient, so what a person experiences will vary from one individual to another (American Addiction Centers, 2022). Another option for users, that arose following the end of prohibition, is known as Alcoholics Anonymous (or AA) was founded in 1935. This has a spiritual-based way of overcoming addiction and it has evolved to create Narcotics Anonymous (NA), Cocaine Anonymous (CA), and Marijuana Anonymous (MA) (American Addiction Centers, 2022).

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=34#h5p-37

### **Concepts of Prevention**

Prevention strategies have a wide reach, from terrifying scare tactics to abstinence to resiliency training. There are two iterations

that will be briefly discussed here, the first is from the CDC (n.d.) and the other is the public health model from the National Institute on Drug Abuse (2022).

### 3 Part Prevention Model

This model has three levels of prevention categorized by primary, secondary, and tertiary prevention activities (CDC). There is cons

- Primary Prevention: This form of prevention takes place before drugs are taken (non-users). There is clear agreement that this is the most important part of this model (Kempf et al., 2017). This largely involves education.
- Secondary Prevention: Here users are screened to identify any predisposition for a disease with preventative health care; this is also known as intervention.
- Tertiary Prevention: This is managing the disease or treatment, after the effects have been experienced by the user. Usually this means to slow or stop the progression.

### Four Strategic Goals

The National Institute on Drug Abuse aims to support and continue to research drug use, prevention, and treatment. There are four goals and four priority focus areas. To read more detailed information, follow this link to the <u>NIDA Strategic Plan (2022)</u>.

#### Goals:

- Goal 1: Identify the causes of drug use and addiction across a lifespan
- Goal 2: Develop new strategies to prevent drug use and its

consequences.

- Goal 3: Develop new treatments to help individuals achieve and maintain recovery.
- Goal 4: Increase the impact of public health programs and research.

#### Focus Areas:

- Examine the interactions of drug use and factors influencing use.
- Increase the development rate of treatments.
- Address real-world problems.
- Advance relationships between research, science, and public health.

### Pregnancy and Birth

Substance use and abuse during pregnancy is a major concern. Drugs cross the placental barrier and will affect the fetus. Moreover, when they are born, they will experience the effects of withdrawal (Stone, 2015;Inaba, 2011). Drug



"<u>Pregnancy</u>" by <u>Kit4na</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY 2.0</u>.

usage may also interact negatively with other health problems. Additionally, it has been found that sometimes pregnancy is the reason for drug usage, using drugs to cope with the stressors associated with unexpected pregnancy (Mburu et al., 2020)

In many cases, pregnant addicts do not have prenatal care or the post-natal care required to manage the addiction appropriately (Inaba, 2011; Stone, 2015). Interviews conducted by Rebecca Stone (2015), showed that many women use alcohol or drugs during pregnancy. Those interviewed experienced isolation while hiding from health care or criminal justice personnel. The barriers to treatment, in addition to the isolation, was challenging for these individuals and often discouraged them from seeking the appropriate treatment during their pregnancy. Kristin Trainor and her study: <u>Material Substance Abuse Disorder: A Look at Provider</u> <u>Stigma, Attitudes, and Beliefs</u> (2022) provided information regarding the beliefs and attitudes exhibited by care workers toward women with substance abuse disorder. Follow the link to read the full study and review the chart on page 12 to see the results.

Fetal alcohol spectrum disorder (FASD) includes other conditions like **fetal alcohol syndrome** (APA, 2022), alcohol-related neurodevelopmental disorder and alcohol-related birth defects (Inaba, 2011).

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=34#h5p-39

### Youth and School

Alcohol is a prominent issue in schools, though tobacco and marijuana are not far behind in their use and abuse (Sanchez-Puertas et al., 2022) and substance abuse among youth has grown due to the pandemic (Layman et al., 2022). Prevention is effective when taught in schools (Inaba, 2011), especially when using materials that are adapted to the specific age group like adolescents or college students. Some studies suggest that real information should be used, but to not use scare tactics or vulgar content in order to frighten students away from using the drugs (Tahlil & Auyub, 2021). A suggested route for drug use prevention in schools include (Tahlil & Auyub, 2021):

- Train students how to say no to drug use, providing them with skills that can be generalized.
- Create relevant policies to decrease the supply available to students.
- Reduce the consequences of using substances by providing appropriate treatment and counseling.

It may be beneficial to make the content engaging and use different forms of media to promote student confidence and resilience. Offering engaging materials may also shift their views about drugs and promote the effectiveness of the overall prevention program (Murah et al., 2020) Moreover, school-based programs that promote the effective use of social skills and the education they receive, will see the most benefits (Sanchez-Puertas et al., 2022).

### Adulthood and Drugs

Drugs have permeated many different components of adult life, including sex, work, military, and as humans age. Each of the following sub-categories provide a brief glimpse into how drugs have played a role.

### Love, Sex, and Drugs

Some drugs have permanently shifted the attitudes toward sexuality, like Viagra or Cialis (Inaba, 2011). But all drugs have the

capacity to affect users either by lowering inhibitions or changing sexual functioning. Many drugs used for sexual experiences do not effect the user outside sex, but sometimes drugs can trigger aggression or violence that is sexual in nature (Inaba, 2011; Simmons & Singer, 2006). Other drugs, like those administered with needles can spread sexually transmitted diseases, which affect millions of people (Saing et al., 2022).

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=34#h5p-40

# Work and Drugs

Substance abuse can occur as a technique to manage the workplace experience and associated stressors (Osei-Nimo et al., 2022). Drugs can be used to feel relaxed or even to increase cognitive functioning (Baum et al., 2021). Substance abuse costs employers billions of dollars each year due to decrease in productivity and increases in healthcare costs (Inaba, 2011). In some cases, like in laborer positions in manufacturing or construction, using drugs while working poses a terrible safety risk both for the user and other employees. (Deria & Lee, 2020). And while the workplace may not be the place to resolve these challenges, it can be a place to educate and share prevention programs, to help mitigate these situations (Smook et al., 2014).

# Military and Drugs

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=34#h5p-41

# Elderly and Drugs

Inappropriate medication use by elderly people is a public health problem and varies greatly, often called polypharmacy (Guaraldo et al., 2011; Chang et al., 2020). There is an urgent need to correct this problem, but it is a complex problem with many potential ways to combat the issue (Kurczewska-Michalak, 2021). Street drug usage drops dramatically after the age of 65, but the use of alcohol and prescription drug use are proven issues in this community. The elderly often experience stronger side effects than their younger counterparts, but often the signs of abuse are missed by healthcare professionals (Inaba, 2011).

# Drug Testing

It is not uncommon for workplaces to require drug testing prior to beginning employment. But they can also require random, periodic, or incident-related drug testing as well. Tests can range from saliva to urine to hair to more advanced drug tests. An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

<u>https://pressbooks.palni.org/</u> <u>psychologyofaddiction/?p=34#h5p-42</u>

# References

:

American Addiction Centers Staff (2022, May 30). History of drug abuse. American Addiction Centers. <u>https://drugabuse.com/addiction/history-drug-abuse/</u>

American Psychological Association (2022). Fetal alcohol syndrome. APA. <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/fetal-alcohol-syndrome</u>

Baum, M., Sattler, S. & Reimann, M. (2021). Towards an understanding of how stress and resources affect the nonmedical use of prescription drugs for performance enhancement among employees. *Curr* Psychol <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s12144-021-01873-7</u>

CBS Mornings (2021, April 29). "They're lawless": Current, formater Navy SEALS allege criminality, drug use within ranks [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TS7oQu161zQ</u>

Centers for Disease Control (n.d.) Picture of America: Prevention [Infographic]. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/pictureofamerica/pdfs/</u> <u>picture\_of\_america\_prevention.pdf</u>

Chang, T.I., Park, H., Kim, D.W., Jeon, E., Rhee, C., Kalanter-Zadeh, K., Kang, E., Kang, S., & Han, S. (2020). Polypharmacy, hospitalization, and mortality risk: a nationwide cohort study. *Sci Rep* 10, 18964. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-75888-8</u>

Deria, A. & Lee, Y. (2020). Drug use: Impact, rules, regulations, and

mitigation practices in the construction industry in the U.S. Safety, 6(2). https://doi.org/10.3390/safety6020032

DrugTalkTV (2013, April 17). What is a drug test and types of drug testing [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KuUCccs4njE</u>

Guaraldo, L., Cano, F., Damasceno, G., Rozenfeld, S. (2011). Inappropriate medication use among the elderly: A systematic review administrative databases. BMC *Geriatrics*, 11. https://bmcgeriatr.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/ 1471-2318-11-79

Inaba, D. (2011). Uppers, downers, all arounders: Physical and mental effects of psychoactive drugs. CNS Productions.

Infographics Show, The (2021, February 21). Insane drugs given to soldiers to win wars [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=VVEwdNrcL8o</u>

Johns Hopkins Medicine (2016). Beyond addiction: The center for addiction and pregnancy [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8spdUppJLTc

Kempf C., Llorca P-M., Pizon F., Brousse G., & Flaudias V. (2017). What's new in addiction prevention in young people: A literature review of the last years of research. *Frontiers in Psychology*. 8:1131. doi: 10.3389/fpsyg.2017.01131

Khan Academy (2015, July 15). Drug use prevention – school programming and protective factors [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LunoLU3XFKc

Kurczewska-Michalak M, Lewek P, Jankowska-Polańska B, Giardini A, Granata N, Maffoni M, Costa E, Midão L and Kardas P (2021) Polypharmacy Management in the Older Adults: A Scoping Review of Available Interventions. *Front. Pharmacol.* 12:734045. <u>doi:</u> 10.3389/fphar.2021.734045

Layman, H.M., Thorisdottir, I.E., Halldorsdottir, T., Sigfusdottir, I., Allegrante, J., Kristjansson, A. (2022). Substance Use Among Youth During the COVID-19 Pandemic: a Systematic Review. *Current Psychiatry Reports*, 24, 307–324. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/ s11920-022-01338-z</u> Mburu, G., Ayon, S., Mahinda, S. & Khoshnood, K. (2020). Determinants of Women's Drug Use During Pregnancy: Perspectives from a Qualitative Study. *Maternal Child Health Journal*, 24, 1170–1178 . <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10995-020-02910-w</u>

McFadden, S. (2020. January 8). Addiction: A story of stigma, a story of hope [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u>watch?v=HHiN7JftdcY

Murah, T., Ferdous Azam, S.M. Khatibi, A., & Tham, J. (2020). Effectiveness of drug and substance abuse prevention programs among schools in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. *European Journal of Public Health Studies*, 2(2). <u>http://dx.doi.org/10.46827/ejphs.v2i2.61</u>

NIDA.( 2020, February 15). NIDA's Mission. Retrieved August 2, 2022 from <u>https://nida.nih.gov/about-nida/strategic-plan/nidas-mission</u>

Osei-Nimo, S., Millman, C. & Aboagye-Nimo, E. (2022). The Interplay of Alcohol and Wellbeing in the Workplace: Combining Soft Systems Methodology and Foucauldian Approach. Syst Pract Action Res <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11213-022-09591-2</u>

Saing, C.H., Chhoun, P., Chann, N., Uk, P., Mun, P., Tuot, S., & Yi, S. (2022). Sex Under the Influence of Drugs Among People Who Use Drugs in Cambodia: Findings From a National Survey. Archives of Sexual Behavior, 51, 1461–1470 (2022). <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10508-021-02243-x</u>

Scott, J. (2022, July 4). Aim high: The long, strange history of drugs in the military [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=VVEwdNrcL80

sexplantaions (2016, April 20). Sex & drugs [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=o3SBSew6gOs

Smook, B., Ubbink, M., Rykem E., & Strydom, H. (2014). Substance abuse, dependence, and the workplace: A literature review. Social work, 50(1). <u>http://www.scielo.org.za/</u> scielo.php?script=sci\_arttext&pid=S0037-80542014000100005

Stone, R. (2015). Pregnant women and substance use: fear, stigma,

and barriers to care. *Health Justice*, 3(2) <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/</u> <u>s40352-015-0015-5</u>

Tahlil T. & Aiyub A. (2021). Ex-drug users' and health professionals' perspectives about school-based drug use prevention programs: A qualitative study. Frontiers in Public Health 9:631212. <u>doi: 10.3389/fpubh.2021.631212</u>

Trainor, L (2022). Maternal substance use disorder: A look at provider stigma, attitudes, and beliefs. *Advanced in Social work*, 22(1). DOI: 10.18060/24282

# Chapter 9: Mental Health and Drugs

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Examine the dominant beliefs and attitudes in our society with regard to chemical use. **(LO1)**
- Explain the effects of addiction on individual, family, and community. **(LO4)**
- Outline and critique current intervention and treatment modalities used in the field. **(LO5)**

### Overview



"<u>Drugs</u>" by <u>garyowen</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-NC 2.0</u>.

It is not unusual for there to be co-occuring mental health programs for those with substance abuse disorders. In fact, is it quite common that a patient will enter psychiatric services because of а complication with a substance disorder (Prodromou, abuse 2018). And, a combination of

drug and mental health issues increases the likelihood that they will be arrested (Woodhouse et al., 2016; Rossheim, 2018). Unfortunately, there is a gap in services that provide for individuals in these unique scenarios (Prodromou, 2018; Hakobyan et al., 2020) despite the fact that much research has been completed on this topic. Clear treatment guidelines have not necessarily been formed (Larson et al., 2022). This chapter will discuss the this relationship and potential treatment options.

### **Dual Diagnosis**

### Definition

is Dual diagnosis the identification of two disorders occurring simultaneously (APA, 2022). For example, alcohol abuse coexisting with depression. This can also be called comorbidity and can include other psychiatric learning conditions like



disabilities (Carvalho & Garner, 2019). Dual diagnosis is welldocumented in research, greater than 50% of users having both types of disorders (substance abuse and mental illness) (Saddichha et al., 2015); over eight million people documented to have a dual diagnosis in the United States alone (Carvalho & Garner, 2019).

Dual diagnosis is a complex condition that requires similarly complex treatment options, tailored to the needs of the individual. Some research suggests medical non-compliance and substance abuse often predicted how well treatment went, noting that that depressive disorders were more common with substance abuse than other mental health disorders further research is needed to better understand how these different disorders interact. (Davis et al., 2022).

# Epidemiology

Epidemiology is the "incidence and distribution of diseases and disorders" (APA, 2022), in this case dual diagnosis. Review the slides and statistics below to see the distribution of dual diagnosis for a 2021 study (Ferrer-Farre et al.). Use the arrow in the lower right corner to expand to full screen.



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=36#h5p-43

# Mental Health vs Substance Abuse

Mental health and substance abuse are both ever-changing pieces of human-centered work. Professionals in these fields can have a pivotal impact in patient lives. Mental disorder is a broad term to describe issues related to emotion, behavior, and mental states. There several difference between mental health treatment and substance abuse treatment. Here are a few to consider:

- The mental health focus believes that if the mental illness is treated properly, the substance abuse will disappear. The substance abuse focus believes the opposite is true (Inaba, 2011).
- The mental health focus believes in partial recovery, while substance abuse focuses on permanent abstinence (Inaba, 2011).



"<u>Satisfaction</u>" by <u>Christopher Read</u> <u>Photography</u> is licensed under <u>CC</u> <u>BY-NC-ND 2.0</u>.

Some studies show a high rate of satisfaction bv individuals who receive treatment for their dual diagnosis, especially those with integrated treatment options (Schulte et al., 2011). The integrative approach involves varied disciplines and services, but this is a complicated

approach to take with no clear guidelines. One study suggested an enactive approach which applies theory rather than just explaining it (Larsen et al., 2022). Enactive psychiatry views disorders as "mosaics" of combined disciplinary elements, like biology, psychology, and sociology. These "mosaics" may provide insight on how the individual needs to be treated in order to promote rehabilitation and healing (Larsen et al, 2022).

Dual diagnosis requires that the patient be treated for both things simultaneously, that integrates different disciplines and strategies. There are several treatment options that have proven successful in dual diagnosis, as provided by National Institute for Drug Abuse (2020). Lean more by going to this website: <u>What are the treatments</u> for comorbid substance use disorder and mental health conditions?

- Cognitive Behavioral Therapy
- Dialectical Behavioral Therapy
- Assertive Community Treatment
- Therapeutic Communities
- Contingency Management or Motivational Incentives
- Exposure Therapy
- Integrated Group Therapy
- Seeking Safety
- Mobile Medical Application

# Psychiatric Disorders

The following psychiatric disorders are the most often co-occuring disorders (Inaba, 2011; Bogucki). It would be beneficial to read more about these from the following resource provided by <u>Ferris State</u> <u>University</u>.

- Schizophrenia spectrum and other psychotic disorders
- Bipolar and related disorders
- Depressive disorders
- Anxiety disorders
- · Obsessive-compulsive and related disorders
- Trauma and stress related disorders
- Personality disorders
- Feeding and eating disorders
- Substance-related and addictive disorders

# Substance-Induced Mental Disorders

Substance-induced mental disorders refer to "depressive, anxiety, psychotic, or manic symptoms" that occur after using drugs either illegal or medical in nature (Revadigar & 2021). The most Gupta, substance-abuse common mental disorders are alcohol, stimulant. and cannabis induced. Symptoms may be experienced during use, while intoxicated, or even in a state of



"<u>3 1 10 Bearman Cartoon Cannabis</u> <u>Skunk Hallucinations</u>" by <u>Bearman2007</u> is licensed under <u>CC</u> <u>BY-NC-ND 2.0</u>.

withdrawal. Learn more about substance-induced disorders from this website: <u>PAX Memphis</u> (2019).

### Psychopharmacology

Psychopharmacology studies the relationships between mental, emotional, and behavioral processes and drugs. It explores how substances affect different areas of the brain (APA, 2022). Watch the following videos to learn more about psychopharmacology and the big categories of drugs used to treat mental illness: antidepressants, antipsychotics, anxiety medications, and mood stabilizers.

An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here: https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=36#h5p-44

### References

American Psychological Association (2022). *Dual diagnosis*. APA. Retrieved on August 9, 2022 from <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/dual-diagnosis</u>

American Psychological Association (2022). *Epidemiology*. APA. Retrieved on August 9, 2022 from <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/</u> <u>epidemiology</u>

American Psychological Association (2022). Psychopharmacology.

APA. Retrieved on August 9, 2022 from <u>https://dictionary.apa.org/</u> psychopharmacology

Bogucki, K. (n.d.) Chapter 10: Mental health and substance abuse. Ferris State University. Retrieved on August 9, 2022 from <u>https://ferrisintroductiontosocialwork.pressbooks.com/chapter/</u> <u>chapter-10-mental-health-and-substance-use/</u>

Carvalho, J. & Garner, D. (2019). Understanding dual diagnosis: Substance abuse and mental illness. Open Access Journal of Addiction and Psychology, 2(4). <u>http://dx.doi.org/10.33552/</u> OAJAP.2019.02.000541

Davis, A., McMaster, P., Christie, D.C., Yang, A., Kruk, J., Fisher, K (2022). Psychiatric Comorbidities of Substance Use Disorders: Does Dual Diagnosis Predict Inpatient Detoxification Treatment Outcomes?. International Journal of Mental Health Addiction. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11469-022-00821-1

Ferrer-Farre, T., Dinamarca, F., Mestre-Pinto, J., Fonseca, F., Torrens, M. (2021). Dual disorders in the consultations liaison addiction service: Gender perspective and quality of life. *Journal of Clinical Medicine*, 10(23). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jcm10235572</u>

Hakobyan, S., Vazirian, S., Lee-Chong, S., Krausz, M., Honer, W., & Schutz, C. (2020). Concurrent disorder management guidelines: Systematic review. *Journal of clinical medicine*, 9(8). <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jcm9082406</u>

Inaba, D. (2011). Uppers, downers, all arounders: Physical and mental effects of psychoactive drugs. CNS Productions.

Knapp, J. (2020). Psychopharmacology [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bTwI4AUZS8g

Larsen JL, Johansen KS., &Mehlsen MY (2022) What kind of science for dual diagnosis? A pragmatic examination of the enactive approach to psychiatry. *Frontiers in Psychology* 13:825701. <u>doi:</u> 10.3389/fpsyg.2022.825701

Memorable Psychiatry and Neurology (2014). Antipsychotics mnemonics [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3J1swiS7uJo</u>

Memorable Psychiatry and Neurology (2014). Mood stabilizers and

anxiolytics mnemonics [Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bTwI4AUZS8g

Memorable Psychiatry and Neurology (2014). Antidepressants Mnemonics [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=18pObJTzRzY

Memorable Psychiatry and Neurology (2014). Anxiety disorders Mnemonics [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=orx4adUXXhU

National Institute on Drug Abuse (2020). What are the treatments for comorbid substance use disorder and mental health conditions. NIDA. <u>https://nida.nih.gov/publications/research-reports/</u> <u>common-comorbidities-substance-use-disorders/what-are-</u> <u>treatments-comorbid-substance-use-disorder-mental-health-</u> <u>conditions</u>

PAX Memphis (2019). Understanding the 11 types of substanceinduced disorders. Retrieved on August 9, 2022 from https://paxmemphis.com/types-of-substance-induceddisorders/

Revadigar N, Gupta V. Substance Induced Mood Disorders. [Updated 2021 Nov 21]. In: StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2022 Jan-. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK555887/

Rossheim, M.E., Livingston, M.D., Lerch, J.A., Taxman, F., & Walters, S. (2018) Serious mental illness and negative substance use consequences among adults on probation. *Health Justice* 6(6). https://doi.org/10.1186/s40352-018-0064-7

Saddichha, S., Schutz, C., Sinha, B., Manjunatha, N. (2015). Substance abuse and dual diagnosis disorders: Future epidemiology, determinants, and policies. *BioMed Research International*, <u>https://doi.org/10.1155/2015/145905</u>

Schultz, S., Meier, P., & Stirling, J. (2011). Dual diagnosis clients treatment satisfaction – a systematic review. BMC Psychiatry, 11(4). <u>https://bmcpsychiatry.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/</u> 1471-244X-11-64

Prodromou, M., Alevizopoulos, G., Tzoumaka, K., Tarabeih, M.,

& Kouki, E. (2018). Mental health disorders and addictions (dual diagnosis) associated with increased number and duration of hospitalizations. International Journal of Recent Scientific Research.

Woodhouse, R., Neilson, M., Martyn-St James, M., Glanville, J., Hewitt, C., & Perry, A. (2016). Interventions for drug-using offenders with co-occurring mental health problems: a systematic review and economic appraisal. *Health Justice*, 4(10) <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/</u> <u>s40352-016-0041-y</u>

# Chapter 10: Treatment

By the end of this chapter, you should be able to:

- Identify and summarize the addiction process and the characteristics thereof. **(LO3)**
- Outline and critique current intervention and treatment modalities used in the field. **(LO5)**

### Principles and Goals of Treatment

Treatment is a complex and challenging component of recovery. The <u>National Institute</u> <u>of Drug Abuse</u> (2018) lists this principles for effect treatment of drug addiction:

 Addiction is a complicated, but treatable disease; it affects an individual's brain and behavior. There is a possibility that the changes will continue to affect the person long after ceasing to be actively addicted.



"<u>addiction</u>" by <u>Alan Cleaver</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY 2.0</u>

- There is not one way to treat addiction. Treatment varies greatly by person, by drug, by needs. So, proper treatment needs to adapt to the individual. It is also possible that there will be dual diagnoses, so care an attention should be given to those scenarios as well.
- **Treatment needs to be available.** Treatment is not going to happen if the users cannot access it. It should be accessible to those who need it, because it is more likely the individual will have a positive outcome.
- **Treatment needs to be tailored**. Effective treatment needs to attend to all of the needs of the person, not just the substance abuse. Inclusive practices will better serve the individual. Moreover, this should be adapted and re-evaluated over time, because the individual will change over time.
- Treatment needs to be completed or at least mostly completed. Research suggests that at least three months is needed for a reduction in addictive behaviors, but this will be different for everyone. Strategies should be used that engage the patient and prevent relapse. It is important to note that treatment does not have to be voluntary to be effective; there may be a greater buy-in to treatment if it is voluntary, but there are proven cases where mandatory treatment is successful.
- **Treatment should include behavioral therapies.** There are many options in this category, to meet the needs of the user, but research has shown that this form of therapy is beneficial.
- Medications may play a vital role. When combined with therapy, medications may play a pivotal role in the recovery process.

Selecting a Program and



"<u>Addiction.</u>" by <u>kphotographer</u> is licensed under <u>CC BY-ND 2.0</u>.

# Beginning Treatment

Selecting the right program in order to begin treatment is an important step in addiction recovery. Review the hot spots below to learn more about how to select a program (Addiction Center, 2022; NIDA, 2018)



### Treatment Continuuum



The first stage is medical This is when detox. the individual needs to experience some level of withdrawal in order to move on to treatment options. The detox protocols will vary from one person to another. addiction one to another (Oxford Treatment 2022). Those Center, experiencing withdrawal may

be safer and more comfortable if completed within a program that is experienced with detoxification.

The next stage may be **inpatient hospitalization and rehabilitation**, which is where the highest level of care care be

given to those who need it. It is important to note that this may not be feasible for all individuals. There are options of partial hospitalization programs and intensive outpatient programs, where someone can be in the program but stay in their homes (The Recovery Village, 2022).

Third is **outpatient recovery**, which generally consists of therapy sessions of varying length over a period of time. And now, with the influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, this can include virtual options (The Recovery Village, 2022). This also includes a plan for the individual to implement sober living, like how to cope with cravings, managing triggers, and discovering new ways to cope with stress, family, work, and friends (St. Joseph Institute for Addiction, 2018).

The final stage is **aftercare** and **post-treatment support**. Treatment may be complete, but there is still a phase of recovery maintenance. The individual has to continue to implement the plan developed for them and execute the coping strategies (Oxford Treatment Center, 2022).

**Revisit as needed** the different stages, if there is relapse or obstacles in someone's recovery. In some ways, individuals who have experienced addiction may never be free of it, because they will always be fighting triggers and using coping methods. But, it may be more extreme, like relapse. In those cases, the individual may have to start over with detoxification.



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=38#h5p-46
## Individual vs. Group Therapy

**Individual therapy** is also known as individual psychotherapy or counseling. In this situation the person meets with a counselor one to one, usually for an hour. The frequency of these meetings will depend entirely on the situation. The sessions will provide an opportunity for individuals to share their experiences, feelings, thoughts, goals, and so on. The counselor will help them develop a plan to achieve goals (Lumen Learning).

**Group therapy** is when the counselor meets with several clients with related problems. Group therapy has some limitations, because not everyone will want to share their experiences. Or there may be personality conflicts. But the benefit is a supportive group who understands the struggle in a way that others will not and it is a safe space to confront problems (Lumen Learning).

Which type of therapy is beneficial will depend entirely on the person, it may also be beneficial to have a combination of group and individual therapy. An honest, thoughtful look at the needs of the individual will guide this decision making process.

Treatment and the Family

Learn more about the family, their influence on someone's recovery, and family therapy by watching the following videos.



An interactive H5P element has been excluded from this version of the text. You can view it online here:

https://pressbooks.palni.org/ psychologyofaddiction/?p=38#h5p-47

## Obstacles

Obstacles are a common issue with recovery and treatment of addictions. It will take commitment to overcome these items, but it is possible! (Duffy & Baldwin, 2013; Best et al., 2021; Rizzo et al., 2022)

- Lack of funds to pay for treatment
- Lack of access to treatment
- Lack of support network
- Untreated other issues
- Family and work challenges
- Lack of education
- Embarrassment or other emotional barriers

Below is a graphic of feedback provided by patients on their experience in treatment and their barriers to treatment (Rizzo et al., 2022)

ONE THING I'D CHANGE / HOW I PROVIDE FEEDBACK I'VE NEVER 2 CT NFEAD at EXPLAIN. PROVIDED DISCRIMINATION ... FOEDBACK FOEDH ------ BEOCKED SO I UNDERSTAND BEFORE .... FROM TREATMENT POSITIVES :-... BEING PUT IN THE BE NON -SOME WORKERS LABELLES IDENTIFIABLE GO OUT OF THEIR WAY DIFFICIL 1001 TO HELP WY: NO IDEA WHERE IT GOES KEEP IN TOUCH! Enter gent @ ten RUN DIGITAL BETTER SOLIAL + REGULAR TERACY MEDIA + OLD SCHOOL FOLLOW-UPP WORKSHOPS RESENCE ADVERTISING Strengton Alterington Statemberth and an international land with the party

Barriers to Treatment (Rizzo et al., 2022)

## References

Addiction Center (2022). Steps to help you choose the right rehab. Questions about Rehab. Retrieved on August 10, 2022 from https://www.addictioncenter.com/rehab-questions/chooseright-rehab/

Duffy, P. & Baldwin, H. (2013). Recovery post treatment: plans, barriers, and motivators. Substance Abuse Treatment, Prevention, and Policy, 8(6). <u>https://substanceabusepolicy.biomedcentral.com/</u>articles/10.1186/1747-597X-8-6#Sec12

Lumen Learning (n.d.). Introduction to psychology. Retrieved on August 10, 2022 from <u>https://courses.lumenlearning.com/</u> waymaker-psychology/

National Institute on Drug Abuse (2018). Types of treatment programs. Principles of Drug Addiction Treatment: A Research Based Guide. Retrieved on August 10, 2022 from https://nida.nih.gov/publications/principles-drug-addictiontreatment-research-based-guide-third-edition/drug-addictiontreatment-in-united-states/types-treatment-programs

National Institute on Drug Abuse (2018). Principles of effective treatment. Principles of Drug Addiction Treatment: A Research Based Guide. Retrieved on August 9, 2022 from https://nida.nih.gov/publications/principles-drug-addiction-treatment-research-based-guide-third-edition/principles-effective-treatment

Oxford Treatment Center (2022). Addiction treatment. American Addiction Centers. Retrieved on August 10, 2022 from https://oxfordtreatment.com/addiction-treatment/

Psych Hub (2020, October 1). What is family therapy? [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nRTYg5n5Bq0</u>

Recovery Village, The (2022). The importance of a continuum of care in addiction recovery. Continuum of Care in Addiction Recovery. Retrieved on August 10, 2022 from

https://www.therecoveryvillage.com/treatment-program/whycontinuum-of-care-is-important-in-recovery/

Rizzo, D., Mu, T., Cotroneo, S., & Arunogiri, S. (2022). Barriers to accessing addiction treatment for women at risk of homelessness. Frontiers in Global Women's Health, 3, <u>https://www.frontiersin.org/</u>articles/10.3389/fgwh.2022.795532/full

Rogers Behavioral Health (2020, September 30). Hear the role family therapy plays in aloved one's treatment at Rogers Behavioral Health [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7t3bt8SC711</u>

SAMHSA (2012, April 9). Families in recovery (Part 1): Explaining addiction [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u><u>watch?v=sdt2U\_avc40</u>

SAMHSA (2006). Substance abuse: Clinical issues in intensive outpatient treatment. Treatment Improvement Protocol, 47. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK64088/

Sandstone Care (2022, February 10). What is the continuum of care program [Video]. YouTube. <u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=A8fQLAypch8</u>

St. Joseph Institute (2018). Understanding the continuum of care in addiction treatment. Retrieved on August 10, 2022 from https://stjosephinstitute.com/understanding-the-continuum-ofcare-in-addiction-treatment/ This is where you can add appendices or other back matter.